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x
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Indicate by check mark if there is no disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained in this form,
and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference
in Part III of Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. Yes o
No o
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act.
Large accelerated filer o
Non-accelerated filer o (Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Accelerated filer o
Smaller reporting company x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act).

Yes o

No x

APPLICABLE ONLY TO REGISTRANTS INVOLVED IN BANKRUPTCY
PROCEEDINGS DURING THE PRECEDING FIVE YEARS:
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Section 12, 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a court. Yes x
No o
Issuer’s revenues for its most recent fiscal year. $1,756,987
State the aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates computed by reference to the price
at which the common equity was last sold, or the average bid and asked price of such common equity, as of the last business day of the
registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter: $498,781 as of June 30, 2012 based on a value of $0.10 per share.
State the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer’s classes of common equity, as of the latest practicable date: 11,562,524 as
of January 10, 2013
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PART I
Item 1.

Business of the Company

Background and History of the Parent Company
Acacia Diversified Holdings, Inc., formerly known as Acacia Automotive, Inc. (“we”, “us”, the “Company”, or the “Parent
Company”) was incorporated in Texas on October 1, 1984 as “Gibbs Construction, Inc.”. The Company changed its name on October 18,
2012. In the following years, the Company grew to a full service, national commercial construction company and completed an initial
public offering of its Common stock pursuant to a registration thereof on Form S-1 in January, 1996. In April 2000, Gibbs Construction,
Inc. sought protection under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code following a similar filing by the Company’s largest client,
which led to significant losses on several of the Company's projects.
Prior to filing its petition for relief, Gibbs Construction, Inc. had 4,060,000 shares of common stock issued and outstanding. The
plan of reorganization filed by the Company placed the then-existing assets of the Company in a liquidating trust (the "Trust"), issued
501,000 shares of common stock to such trust, and agreed to issue 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock to its primary creditor, Thacker
Asset Management, LLC (“TAM”). TAM thereafter agreed to sell to the Company certain existing contracts, furniture, fixtures and
equipment in exchange for an additional 4,000,000 shares of common stock. Following those transactions, there were 8,561,000 shares
of the Company’s common stock issued and outstanding, the majority of which were held by TAM.
TAM was unsuccessful in its efforts to bring the Company back to profitability and out of bankruptcy. Accordingly, all operating
activities ceased in 2002. On June 26, 2006, the bankruptcy trustee requested and received an Order for Final Decree. On October 5,
2006, the 501,000 shares of common stock issued to the Trust were abandoned, returned to the Company, and thereupon cancelled leaving
8,060,000 shares issued and outstanding.
Post Bankruptcy Restructuring
On August 15, 2006, for the sum of $50,000, Steven L. Sample acquired 4,000,000 shares, or 46.7%, of the 8,561,000 issued
and outstanding shares of common stock of the Company from TAM and its associates. Mr. Sample also satisfied several outstanding
liabilities of the company such as those associated with completing the bankruptcy proceedings, professional costs related to the
Company's ongoing SEC reporting requirements and expenses associated with recapitalizing the company. These expenses totaled
$138,862. As consideration for the payment of these expenses by Mr. Sample, the Company agreed to effect a one for eight reverse stock
split, to issue to Mr. Sample an additional 8,117,500 shares of Common stock and 500,000 shares of Preferred stock. For the assistance of
Harry K. Myers, Jr., a principal of Baker #1, Ltd., the entity owning TAM, the registrant agreed to issue to him 25,000 shares of preferred
stock and 450,000 shares of common stock.
In order to further restructure and rehabilitate the Company and to satisfy its obligations to Mr. Sample, its board of directors
recommended that its stockholders amend the Articles of Incorporation to effect a one for eight reverse stock split, and increase the
number of authorized shares of common stock to 150,000,000. The board of directors also recommended the authorization of a series of
preferred stock. On February 1, 2007, the Company’s shareholders approved these actions and also approved changing the Company’s
name from Gibbs Construction, Inc. to Acacia Automotive, Inc. These amendments to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation were
effective February 20, 2007.
Immediately following the approval of these amendments, the Company adopted a stock option plan, which was ratified by
the Company’s stockholders in November 2007, reserving 1,000,000 shares thereunder. In February 2007, pursuant to such plan, the
directors granted 500,000 shares of its common stock to Mr. Tony Moorby, who was at that time the Company’s president, as well
as 15,000 total shares to two other then-officers. With these grants, the exercise of warrants to purchase 250,000 shares of common
stock, the exchange of the preferred stock issued to a creditor in the bankruptcy proceeding for 100,000 shares of common stock, and
the payment of 10,000 shares of common stock to a consultant, there were 11,997,524 shares of common stock issued and outstanding
on March 31, 2008. In subsequent actions resulting from the terms of the Settlement Agreement and Release between the parties to
litigations, the Company cancelled 65,000 Common stock purchase options issued to Mr. Moorby during his tenure as an officer and
director of the Company, and Mr. Moorby was also required to return to the Company for cancellation the 500,000 shares of Common
stock issued to him in 2007. In the same actions, the Company also cancelled 190,000 Common stock purchase options issued to former
director and officer David Bynum. (See Part I, Item 3 – “Legal Proceedings”)
Contemplated Business
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The Company’s primary objective is to identify and acquire going concerns in the automotive auction industry, with a focus
on whole vehicle automobiles and light trucks. Whole vehicle refers to vehicles that are frequently in good repair, are roadworthy, and
operate under their own power as opposed to salvage units, being damaged vehicles that are often considered total losses for insurance
or business purposes. In addition, the Company believes that if the acquired auction or auctions do not service the boat, recreational or
motor home segments or the medium and heavy-duty truck and equipment segments, it will seek to add one or more of those services to
the auction’s activities, assuming the local market will support such additional services.
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The Company considers its first two automobile auctions as indicative of the basis of services rendered by the Company. The
Company will have to raise cash to acquire additional automobile auctions, possibly through the sale of common stock.
On July 10, 2007, the Company completed the acquisition of all of the assets of Augusta Auto Auction, Inc., which had
conducted its business under the name Augusta Auto Auction and previously as Hilltop Auto Auction. The Company issued 500,000
shares of its common stock and a warrant to purchase 50,000 additional shares to its three owners in exchange for the assets and business
of the auction. The warrant has a term of five years and an exercise price of $1.00 per share. In addition, the Company issued to two of
those individuals separate warrants to purchase 75,000 shares of common stock each as consideration for entering into a non-compete
agreement with the Company. Of the 75,000 warrants issued to each of those individuals for non-compete agreements, they were given
the right to purchase 25,000 shares of Common stock each at $1.00, $2.00 and $4.00 respectively for an average aggregate price of $2.33
per share within five years of issuance.
On December 26, 2009, the Company completed the acquisition of certain assets of Chattanooga Auto Auction Limited Liability
Company for cash consideration in the amount of $5,000. Acacia Chattanooga Vehicle Auction, Inc., a subsidiary of Acacia Automotive,
Inc., operated this auction from a leased facility in Chattanooga, Tennessee prior to accounting for it as discontinued operations effective
with its report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2010. (See Part II, Item 9B – “Other Information” and Part I, Item 3 –
“Legal Proceedings”.)
History of Augusta Auto Auction
Augusta Auto Auction, Inc. (the “Augusta Auction”) is an automotive auction located in North Augusta, South Carolina, part
of the Augusta, Georgia, metropolitan area, and is located three miles from the center of that city. The auction was originally formed
and operated for many years in its present location as Hilltop Auto Auction. In 2002 the group of three individuals from which the
registrant purchased the auction formed Augusta Auto Auction, Inc. after acquiring it from the owners of Hilltop Auto Auction. The
auction consists of a leased premises of approximately five acres, as well as additional rented property directly across the street. The main
facility consists of a two-lane auction arena housed within one of two administration buildings that total some 4,900 square feet, three
smaller outbuildings consisting of two storage buildings, and a security building also utilized for vehicle check-in and check-out. The
additional rented property provides several additional acres of parking and an indoor storage facility of some 1,800 square feet.
In July, 2007, the Company caused to be formed Acacia Augusta Vehicle Auction, Inc., a South Carolina corporation and whollyowned subsidiary of the Company. (“AAVA”). AAVA was formed for the sole purposes of acquiring the assets of the Augusta Auto
Auction, which it did in July of 2007, and operating the auction.
In subsequent events, the Company disposed of the assets and the business related to its Augusta auction on July 31, 2012. (See
Part II, Item 9B – “Other Information”).
History of Chattanooga Auto Auction
Chattanooga Auto Auction (the “Chattanooga Auction”) is an automotive auction located in Chattanooga, Tennessee,
approximately ten miles from the center of that city. The auction was originally formed January 24, 1996, as Chattanooga Auto Auction
Limited Liability Company and thereafter continued to operate in its present location until its assets were acquired by the Company
on December 26, 2009. The property consists of approximately 56 acres, mostly paved, with a two-lane test-driving track and several
buildings. The auction arena consists of eight lanes attached to a 25,730 square foot office complex. The property includes a three lane,
14,800 square foot reconditioning center, a 4,500 square foot vehicle check-in center, and a 3,130 square foot five-bay structure intended
for use as a mechanical repair center.
In August of 2009 the Company caused to be formed Acacia Chattanooga Vehicle Auction, Inc. a Tennessee corporation and
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“ACVA”). ACVA was formed for the sole purpose of acquiring the assets of the Chattanooga
Auto Auction Limited Liability Company, which it did in December of 2009, and operating the auction.
On September 17, 2010, a dispute arose between the Company and Ms. Alexis Jacobs (“Jacobs”), the principal seller of the
Chattanooga Auto Auction and the party that also provided a line of credit for use by the Company’s Acacia Chattanooga Vehicle Auction,
Inc. (“ACVA”) subsidiary and related parties. The dispute resulted in the filing of litigations by and between Jacobs, the Company and
other related parties. Ultimately the matters were fully settled by agreements of the parties on February 28, 2012. (See Part I, Item 3 –
“Legal Proceedings”.)
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As a result of that dispute and the actions surrounding it, the Company deemed its Chattanooga subsidiary’s operations as
discontinued effective as of August 31, 2010, the last month for which the Company controlled the Chattanooga auction operation. The
financial statements in the report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2010 and thereafter, including this report on Form 10-K for
the period ended 12-31-2010, reflect that determination. (See Part II, Item 9B - “Other Information”.)
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Business of the Auctions
Both the Company’s auctions primarily sold “whole car” vehicles for automotive dealers and commercial concerns, and to
a lesser extent, salvage units. Whole car units are usually units in reasonable repair and operating condition, while salvage units are
generally, but not always, inoperative and often have been damaged or devalued as a result of exposure to water, fire, collision, theft or
otherwise. The Chattanooga Auction also sold vehicles and equipment under a contract with the U.S. Government's General Services
Administration ("GSA"), primarily offering off-lease vehicles and other units for the GSA and other governmental agencies, and the
Augusta Auction sells vehicles and equipment under a contract with the United States Marshals Service. Dealers and other qualified
buyers attend the weekly auctions and bid on offered units. The highest bidder owns the vehicle, subject to any limiting reserve prices
established by the owner/seller of the unit(s). In most cases, the buyers and sellers of the units pick up and deliver them to the Auction
property, but the Auction does provide transport services, generally for a fee. Both the Company's auctions also held Friday night
auctions that were open to public bidders in addition to dealers, and occasionally held special sales at other times.
Auctions generate revenues from fees for services, including buyer fees, seller fees, transportation fees, title fees, draft and floor
plan financing fees, reconditioning fees, and more. Augusta Auto Auction primarily relies upon the efforts of its management for sales
and marketing, but anticipates adding additional personnel in the future to increase the scope of those operations. While both auctions
marketed their activities through their employees and commercial media, Chattanooga Auto Auction, the larger of the two, had a separate
sales and marketing staff.
The Company ceased to operate the Chattanooga auction effective August 31, 2010, its last full month in management and
control of that facility and operation. The Company has accounted for the Chattanooga unit as discontinued operations on its consolidated
financial statements in the report for the period ended June 30, 2010. (See Subsequent Events in Part II, Item 9B - Other Information.)
Industry
Automotive auctions are the hub of a massive redistribution system for used vehicles and equipment. These auctions enable
commercial and institutional customers and selling dealers to easily dispose of their used vehicles to franchised, independent, and
wholesale used vehicle and equipment dealers. The auction’s responsibility is to maximize the selling price obtained for clients’ used
vehicles and equipment, efficiently transfer the physical and administrative ownership of the units (including the preparation and transfer
of certificates of title and other evidence of ownership), and transfer funds resulting from the buy/sell transactions as quickly as possible
from the buyers to the sellers. The auction promotes its services to a large number of dealers seeking to restock their inventories for resale
opportunities. Auctions are traditionally held weekly, if not more frequently, at the various locations to accommodate the needs of buyers
and sellers in diverse segments of the industry. During the process, auctions do not generally take title to or ownership of the vehicles
consigned for sale, but instead facilitate the transfer of vehicle ownership directly from seller to buyer, and in so doing they generate fees
from the buyer and from the seller. In addition to these “buy/sell” fees, the auctions can generate substantial revenues by providing other
services to clients, including: vehicle appearance reconditioning (detailing) services; paint and body repair; paintless dent repair (PDR);
glass repair and replacement; key replacement; upholstery repair; minor mechanical repair; title services; sales of tires, batteries and
accessories (TBA); marshaling (controlled storage) and inspection services, inbound and outbound transportation and delivery services,
and more. In most instances, customers may also purchase each of these value-added services separately and directly from the auction in
addition to having these services performed to units enrolled in the normal vehicle auction process.
The total number of vehicles offered for sale, and the total number of vehicles sold allow for determination of the total and
per unit costs incurred and fees generated by the process. An important measure to the results of the used vehicle auction process is the
conversion percentage, which represents the number of vehicles sold as a percentage of the vehicles offered for sale. In general, a high
sales volume and conversion percentage efficiency at an auction converts to increased fees, lower costs, and greater profit opportunities.
Auto auctions can also provide additional services to their clients, often including: (1) in-house services such as processing, advertising
and marketing of the vehicles to be offered for sale; registration of new dealers and clients; processing of sale proceeds and other funds;
handling arbitration disputes from the auction sale/purchase process; preparation of and transmittal of vehicle condition reports; security
services for client inventories; creation and distribution of sales and marketing reports; as well as the actual sale of vehicles by licensed
auctioneers; (2) internet-based solutions, including on-line bulletin board auctions and on-line live auctions that are simulcast in real-time
in cooperation with the actual physical auctions; and, (3) title processing and other paperwork administration and ancillary services.
6
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Competition
The Company anticipates competing principally by service. Management of the Company believes that service is one keystone
upon which auto auctions are routinely measured, and has identified and made the practical execution of a high level of service to its
clients an integral part of its business and operating plans.
The industry served by the Company is highly competitive across the entire United States and Canada. It is anticipated that any
of our acquisition targets would potentially compete with a variety of knowledgeable and experienced companies. The main competitors
the Company would expect to face throughout the United States are: (1) Manheim Auto Auctions: Manheim, a subsidiary of Cox
Enterprises, operates approximately 135 locations throughout the world, with more than 75 whole car auto auctions and many salvage or
specialty auctions in the United States. Manheim owns several of the country’s largest auction facilities, and our management considers
them to be very competitive and the leader in technological processes and Internet marketing capabilities. (2) ADESA Auto Auctions:
ADESA, traded on the NYSE under the symbol KAR prior to being acquired by an investor group led by Kelso and Company in April
of 2007 and thereby being taken private, is the second-largest auto auction company in North America with approximately 62 whole car
auctions and many salvage auctions. They operate some 48 whole car auctions in the United States and 14 in Canada. KAR Auction
Services, the parent of Adesa Auctions, went public again in December of 2009, marking the third time the auction entity has found
itself in the public sector. The company's stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol KAR. Acacia’s Management
believes that ADESA’s technological processes and Internet marketing capabilities, while lagging those of Manheim, are nonetheless
formidable. (3) Auction Broadcasting Company (ABC): ABC owns and operates approximately ten auto auctions nationally. While not
nearly so large in their technological processes and Internet marketing capabilities as Manheim or ADESA, ABC has worked to develop
a diverse model from its competitors. (4) Independent auto auctions: There are hundreds of independent auto auctions operating in the
United States. Acacia actually sees these independent auctions as targets for future acquisitions, and enjoys a friendly relationship in most
instances. (5) “Mobile” auctions: There are several companies that operate “mobile” auctions. Their plans primarily entail engaging larger
dealerships to periodically host “on-site” auctions that utilize these companies’ auctioneering and administrative services. Management
does not believe these smaller independent mobile auctions are a substantial threat to our operations and will not likely become so under
their present or anticipated business models.
There are at least eleven auto auctions in operation in Georgia, six or more in South Carolina, and thirteen or more in
Tennessee. The two largest whole-car national automobile auction companies, Mannheim and ADESA, have a total of three such
auctions in Georgia, all near Atlanta, and a total of five such auctions in Tennessee, mostly near Nashville and Knoxville. While ADESA
does not have a whole car auction in South Carolina, Mannheim has one in Darlington. Auction Broadcasting Corporation also has one
near Atlanta, Georgia, and one near Nashville, Tennessee, but none in South Carolina. In addition to those auction operations, there are
several other independent whole car auto auctions, some specializing in sales of damaged or “salvage” units, and perhaps one or more
mobile auctions that will host on-site auctions at dealerships.
All our competitors will be seeking the same or similar clients as those targeted by our planned operations in every state in
which we may seek to operate, many of which presently have significantly greater financial, technical, marketing and other resources
than our Company. Our Company expects that it will face additional competition from existing competitors and new market entrants in
the future. The principal competitive factors in our markets will emanate from the larger national companies and will include: (i) brand
name recognition of competitors; (ii) larger, more modern, and better-equipped facilities; (in) superior Internet system engineering and
technological expertise; (iv) more extensive staffs of experienced management and support personnel; (v) broader geographic presence;
(vi) greater financial resources; (vii) introductions of new and enhanced services and products; and, (viii) greater variety of services
offered. We will have no control over how successful our competitors are in addressing these factors. Increased competition can result in
price reductions, reduced gross margins and loss of market share, any of which could harm our net revenue and results of operations. The
Company will rely upon its ability to offer the same or similar services as the competition, but with a higher level of service and customer
satisfaction.
The prices to be charged by any auction the Company may acquire will generally be reflective of the competitive pricing in its
local marketplace. Some of these local markets may face competitive pressures from national automobile auction chains such as ADESA
and Manheim which have greater size as well as financial and market strengths the Company lacks.
Employees
As of December 31, 2010, the Parent Company had two officers, being Steven L. Sample, its Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer, and Patricia Ann Arnold, its Secretary. Ms. Arnold serves in her capacity as a non-employee, while Mr. Sample
serves as a full-time employee of the Company. . The Parent Company has two other part-time employees. Prior to September 17, 2010
the Company also employed another officer, Mr. John David Bynum, as its Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. Additionally,
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AAVA, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, employs approximately 25 full and part-time persons, while ACVA, also a whollyowned subsidiary of the Company, employed approximately 55 full and part-time persons. The Company accounted for its Chattanooga
subsidiary as discontinued operations effective with its reports for the period ended June 30, 2010.
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The Company, should it be successful in executing its business plan, believes that it may be required to expand its staff to
implement the controls necessary to manage a larger organization. This would likely result in the need for a Chief Financial Officer or
Corporate Controller as well other officers and managers and basic support personnel. The Company will endeavor to operate with the
smallest corporate management staff possible so as to maintain the lowest overhead possible while still effecting sufficient management
processes to properly guide the company.
Governmental Regulation
The Company, as with most companies operating vehicle auctions, is subject to various permits and licenses. These include
vehicle dealer licenses, auctioneer licenses, business permits and licenses, sales tax permits, and others. The Company believes that it has
obtained all permits necessary to function under the current state and federal regulations.
Available Information
Our Web address is www.acacia.bz. The Company attempts to make its electronic filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) (including all Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and
if applicable, amendments to those reports) are available free of charge on the Web site as soon as reasonably practicable after they are
electronically filed with, or furnished to, the SEC. In addition, information regarding our board of directors is available on our Web site.
The information posted on our Web site is not incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Any materials that we file with the SEC may be read and copied at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street,
N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at
1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SEC maintains an Internet Web site that contains reports, proxy statements and other information about
issuers, like us, that file electronically with the SEC. The address of that site is www.sec.gov.
Item 1A. Risk Factors
Our auditors have issued a going concern opinion with respect to our consolidated financial statements although our financial
statements are prepared using generally accepted accounting principles applicable to a going concern.
The Company has incurred significant losses as a consolidated entity since July 2007, losses that have continued since that time
through fiscal 2010. These continuing losses raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern and our auditor's
opinion with respect to our financial statements contain a going concern opinion. The accompanying audited consolidated financial
statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of asset carrying amounts or the amount and
classification of liabilities that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.
The financial statements in our filings on Form 10-Q for the three quarters ending September 30, 2009 and the third quarter of fiscal
2008 were not reviewed by our independent auditor.
Our annual financial statements for fiscal 2008 and 2009 were audited, but our quarterly results for the first three fiscal quarters
in 2009 and the third fiscal quarter in 2008 were not reviewed by our independent auditor. Through unintentional error, the Company
failed to label those results as “not reviewed”. Although we believe those quarterly financial statements to be accurate in all material
respects, there is an increased potential that quarterly financial information may have some inaccuracies. The Company subsequently
filed amended reports on Form 10-Q/A for the periods ended 9-30-2009 and 3-31-2010, and has filed an amended report on Form 10-K/A
for the period ended 12-31-2009 in order to properly address those deficiencies. Reports beginning with the period ended 3-31-2010
have been reviewed by the Company’s independent auditors.
Because We Have Limited Operating History, it is Difficult to Evaluate Our Business.
The Company began its operations as an automotive concern in July 2007 with the acquisition of one automobile
auction. Because of our limited operating history, you have very little operating and financial data about us upon which to base an
evaluation. You should consider our prospects in light of the risks, expenses and difficulties we may encounter, including those frequently
encountered by new companies. If we are unable to execute our plans and grow our business, either as a result of the risks identified in
this section or for any other reason, this failure would have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, business prospects, and
financial condition.
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We plan to grow through acquisitions, and investors have little current basis to evaluate the possible merits or risks of the target
businesses' operations or our ability to identify and integrate acquired operations into our company. To the extent we complete a business
combination with a financially unstable company or an entity in its development stage, we may be affected by numerous risks inherent
in the business operations of those entities. Although our management will endeavor to evaluate the risks inherent in a particular target
business, we cannot assure you that we will properly ascertain or assess all of the significant risk factors.
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The purchase of our securities is a purchase of an interest in what should be considered as a high risk venture or in a new or
“start-up” venture with all the unforeseen costs, expenses, problems, and difficulties to which such ventures are subject.
We plan to grow through acquisitions
Because we intend to develop and expand our business through selective acquisitions of automobile auctions and other
complementary businesses, there are significant risks that we may not be successful. We may not be able to identify, acquire or profitably
manage additional companies or assets or successfully integrate such additional companies or assets without substantial costs, delays or
other problems. In addition, companies we may acquire may not be profitable at the time of their acquisition or may not achieve levels of
profitability that would justify our investment. Acquisitions may involve a number of special risks, including:
§

adverse short-term effects on our reported operating results,

§

diversion of management's attention,

§

dependence on retaining, hiring and training key personnel,

§

risks associated with unanticipated problems or legal liabilities,

§

amortization of acquired intangible assets, some or all of which could reflect poorly on our operating results and
financial reports,

§

implementation or remediation of controls, procedures and policies appropriate for a public company at companies that
prior to the acquisition lacked these controls, procedures and policies; and,

§

incursion of debt to make acquisitions or for other operating uses.

We will implement our acquisition strategy in what may be considered a mature industry
We believe the vehicle redistribution industry through auctions may be considered a mature industry in which single-digit or low
double-digit growth may occur. Most growth for our Company would, accordingly, occur largely through acquisitions. To the extent that
competitors are also seeking to grow through acquisitions, we could encounter competition for those acquisitions or a generally increasing
price to acquire automobile auctions.
A primary part of the Company’s strategy is to establish revenue through the acquisition of additional companies or operations.
There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to identify, acquire or profitably manage additional companies or successfully
integrate the operations of additional companies into those of the Company without encountering substantial costs, delays or other
problems. In addition, there can be no assurance that companies acquired in the future will achieve or maintain profitability that justify
liabilities that could materially adversely affect the Company's results of operations or financial condition. The Company may compete
for acquisition and expansion opportunities with companies that have greater resources than the Company. There can be no assurance that
suitable acquisition candidates will be available, that purchase terms or financing for acquisitions will be obtainable on terms acceptable
to the Company, that acquisitions can be consummated or that acquired businesses can be integrated successfully and profitability into
the Company’s operations. Further, the Company's results of operations in fiscal quarters immediately following a material acquisition
could be materially adversely affected while the Company integrates the acquired business into its existing operations.
The Company will attempt to acquire business entities that are going and functioning concerns with a trailing history of
profitability, but may acquire certain businesses that have either been unprofitable, have had inconsistent profitability prior to their
acquisition, or that have had no operating history. An inability of the Company to improve the profitability of these acquired businesses
could have a material adverse effect on the Company. Finally, the Company's acquisition strategy places significant demands on the
Company's resources and there can be no assurance that the Company's management and operational systems and structure can be
expanded to effectively support the Company's acquisition strategy. If the Company is unable to successfully implement its acquisition
strategy, this inability could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, results of operations, or financial condition. The
Company may face the opportunity to enhance shareholder value by being acquired by another company. Upon any acquisition of the
Company, the Company would be subject to various risks, including the replacement of its management by persons currently unknown.
There can also be no assurance that, if acquired, new management will be successfully integrated or can profitably manage the Company.
In addition, any acquisition of the Company may involve immediate dilution to existing shareholders of the Company. In its present
configuration, the Company cannot be forcibly acquired in a hostile takeover, and therefore the Company can review the ultimate impact
Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

on its shareholders prior to engaging in any such activities. No assurances can be given that the Company will be able to or desire to be
acquired, or be able to acquire additional companies.
9
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Need for Additional Financing
The Company intends to fund its operations and other capital needs for the next six months from revenues generated from
operations and from lines of credit associated with its auction operations, but there can be no assurance that such funds will be sufficient
to meet the obligations of our business. The Company may require additional amounts of capital for its future expansion and working
capital, possibly from private placements or borrowing, but there can be no assurance that such financing will be available, or that such
financing will be available on acceptable terms.
Dependence on Key Personnel
Our future performance depends in significant part upon the continued service of our Chief Executive Officer, Steve Sample.
The loss of his services could have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.
The Company does not presently maintain key man life insurance on Mr. Sample, but may obtain such insurance at the discretion of its
board of directors for such term as it may deem suitable or desirable. Our future success also depends on our ability to attract and retain
highly qualified technical, sales and managerial personnel. Although the Company feels that there is a sufficient pool of talent available,
the competition for such personnel can be intense, and there can be no assurance that we can attract, assimilate or retain highly qualified
technical, sales and managerial personnel for favorable compensations in the future.
Technological Change
Technology, particularly the ability to use the Internet to view vehicles, to conduct Internet auctions, to allow customers to
participate through the Internet in on–site auctions, and to allow several management functions for buyers and sellers for vehicle
auctions is characterized by rapidly changing technology, evolving industry standards, frequent new product and service announcements,
introductions and enhancements, and changing customer demands. Our future success will to some degree depend on our ability to
adapt to rapidly changing technologies, our ability to adapt its solutions to meet evolving industry standards and our ability to improve
continually the performance, features and reliability of its solutions. The failure of the Company to adapt successfully to such changes in a
timely manner could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, results of operations and financial condition. Furthermore,
there can be no assurance that the Company will not experience difficulties that could delay or prevent the successful implementation
of solutions, or that any new solutions or enhancements to existing solutions will adequately meet the requirements of its current and
prospective customers and achieve any degree of significant market acceptance. If the Company is unable, for technological or other
reasons, to develop and introduce new solutions or enhancements to existing solutions in a timely manner or in response to changing
market conditions or customer requirements, or if its solutions or enhancements do not achieve a significant degree of market acceptance,
the Company's business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially and adversely affected.
Competition
The industry served by the Company is highly competitive across the entire United States and Canada. We currently or
potentially compete with a variety of companies. Our first acquisition, servicing the Augusta, Georgia area, was acquired July 10, 2007.
We anticipate that the Company’s other early acquisitions, if any, will be in the eastern or central United States, but there is no assurance
the Company will be able to adhere to that plan or to make any acquisitions at all.
Control
The Company is effectively controlled by its CEO and Chairman, Steven L. Sample, who currently owns 48.91% of the
Company’s issued and outstanding common stock. Mr. Sample will initially retain effective control over the Company’s operations,
including the election of a majority of its board of directors, the issuance of additional shares of equity securities, and other matters
of corporate governance, and based upon the Company's current business plan, it is anticipated that Mr. Sample will continue to have
effective but not ultimate control of the Company well into future, perhaps even after some subsequent private offerings or a public
offering.
Management of Growth
The Company is currently seeking to identify and acquire additional auto auctions or other viable businesses. As a result, the
Company must manage relationships with a growing number of third parties as it seeks to accommodate this goal. The Company's
management, personnel, systems, procedures and controls may not be adequate to support the Company’s future operations. The
Company's ability to manage its growth effectively will require it to continue to expand its operating and financial procedures and
controls, to replace or upgrade its operational, financial and management information systems and to attract, train, motivate, manage and
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retain key employees. If the Company's executives are unable to manage growth effectively, the Company's business, results of operations
and financial condition could be materially adversely affected. If successful in acquiring additional auto auctions, the Company expects
to inherit a substantial portion of the staff necessary to operate the new entities. We may find that some of the personnel and management
of any acquisition target(s) may not be suitable for continued employment, while other suitable candidates may elect to discontinue their
employment or affiliation with the Company for various reasons. This can create a burden on the Company’s management as it seeks to
fill key positions. Failure of the Company to do so in a timely manner can result in disruption of auction operations, loss of revenues, and
a subsequent reduction in profits.
10
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Risks Associated with Expansion
The Company commenced auction operations first in one location and market and then a second, and plans to subsequently
expand into other locations and markets. To date, the Company does not have experience in developing services on a regional or
national scale. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to deploy successfully its services in these markets. There are
certain risks inherent in doing business in several diverse markets, such as; unexpected changes in regulatory requirements, potentially
adverse tax consequences, local restrictions, controls relating to inter-company communications and technology, difficulties in staffing
and managing distant operations, fluctuations in manpower availability, effects of local competition, weather and climactic trends, and
customer preferences, any of which could have a material adverse effect on the success of the Company's operations and, consequently,
on the Company's business, results of operations, and financial condition.
Product and Service Offerings
The Company is primarily a service business. It is important to our future success to expand the breadth and depth of our service
offerings to stay abreast of the competition and to enhance our potentials for growth of revenues and profits. Expansion of our service
categories and service offerings in this manner will require significant additional expenditures and could strain our management, financial
and operational resources. For example, we may find it prudent to build, outfit, and operate a body and paint shop at an auction facility
that does not presently have one. We cannot be certain that we will be able to do so in a cost-effective or timely manner or that we will
be able to offer certain services in demand by our customers, or to do so in a quality manner. Furthermore, any new service offering
that is not favorably received by the Company’s clients could damage our reputation. The lack of market acceptance of new services or
our inability to generate satisfactory revenues from expanded service offerings to offset their costs could harm our business. If we do
not successfully expand our sales and service operations, our revenues may fall below expectations. If we do not successfully expand
our operations on an ongoing basis to accommodate increases in demand, we will not be able to fulfill our customers’ needs in a timely
manner, which would harm our business. Most of our service operations are anticipated to be handled at our facilities, but some services
may be performed at offsite locations or by approved vendors or contractors. Any future expansion may cause disruptions in our business
and may be insufficient to meet our ongoing requirements.
Government Regulation and Legal Uncertainties
Any new legislation or regulation, or the application of laws or regulations from jurisdictions whose laws do not currently apply
to the Company's business could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, results of operations and financial condition.
Check, Credit Card, and Other Fraud
Our business would be harmed if we experience significant check, credit card, or other fraud. If we fail to adequately control
fraudulent transactions, our revenues and results of operations could be harmed. The Company’s auction operations subscribe to the
services of Auction Insurance Agency as a protection against risks similar to these, but while the Company’s exposure to loss in this event
is thought to be limited by the purchase of insurance, losses could nonetheless occur. Any losses sustained as a result of fraud or fraudulent
activity would adversely affect the Company's business and results of operations, and its financial condition could be materially adversely
affected.
Liability Claims
The Company may face costly liability claims by consumers. Any claim of liability by a client, employee, consumer or other
entity against us, regardless of merit, could be costly financially and could divert the attention of our management. It could also create
negative publicity, which would harm our business. Although we maintain liability insurance, it may not be sufficient to cover a claim if
one is made.
Risks of Low Priced Stocks
Although the Company is currently a public company, its trading is limited to the Pink Sheets. A trading market for the
Company's common stock could develop further, but there can be no assurance that it will do so. The Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC” or “Commission”) has adopted regulations which define a “penny stock” to be any equity security, such as
those being offered by the Company herein, that has a market price (as therein defined) of less than $5.00 per share or an exercise price
of less than $5.00 per share, subject to certain exceptions. For any transaction involving a penny stock, unless exempt, the rules require
the delivery, prior to any transaction involving a penny stock by a retail customer, of a disclosure schedule prepared by the Securities and
Exchange commission relating to the penny stock market. Disclosure is also required to be made about commissions payable to both the
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broker/dealer and the registered representative and current quotations for the securities. Accordingly, market makers may be less inclined
to participate in marketing the Company’s securities, which may have an adverse impact upon the liquidity of the Company’s securities.
11
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No Assurance of Payment of Dividends
Should the operations of the Company become profitable it is likely that the Company would retain much or all of its earnings
in order to finance future growth and expansion. Therefore, the Company does not presently intend to pay dividends, and it is not likely
that any dividends will be paid in the foreseeable future.
Potential Future Capital Needs
The Company may not be successful in generating sufficient cash from operations or in raising capital in sufficient amounts on
acceptable terms. The failure to generate sufficient cash flows or to raise sufficient funds may require the Company to delay or abandon
some or all of its development and expansion plans or otherwise forego market opportunities and may make it difficult for the Company
to respond to competitive pressures, any of which could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, results of operations,
and financial condition. While the Company may seek to raise capital through the offering of Common stock in a private placement, there
can be no assurance that the proceeds in any such Offering will be sufficient to permit the Company to implement its proposed business
plan or that any assumptions relating to the implementation of such plan will prove to be accurate. To the extent that the proceeds of any
such Offering are not sufficient to enable the Company to generate meaningful revenues or achieve profitable operations, the inability to
obtain additional financing will have a material adverse effect on the Company. There can be no assurance that any such financing will
be available to the Company on commercially reasonable terms, or at all.
Implementation of Business Plan
The Company currently does not have sufficient working capital to pursue our business plan in its entirety as described herein.
Our ability to implement our business plan will depend on our ability to obtain sufficient working capital and to execute the business
plan. No assurance can be given that we will be able to obtain additional capital, or, if available, that such capital will be available at
terms acceptable to us, or that we will be able to generate profit from operations, or if profits are generated, that they will be sufficient to
carry out our business plan, or that the plan will not be modified.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
The Company is in receipt of a comment letter from the Securities and Exchange Commission dated November 22, 2010 (the
“Comment Letter”). The Comment Letter propounded thirty (30) comments relating to the Company's: (a) Annual Report on Form
10-K filed for the period ending December 31, 2009; (b) Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30, 2009; (c)
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2010; and (d) Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 25, 2010.
We determined that our previously reported financial results for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2009
and 2008 were not reviewed by the Company’s auditors. However, by reason of unintentional oversight, the Company erroneously failed
to label those results as having been “Not Reviewed”. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the annual financial results of the Company were
audited in 2009 and 2008.
Moreover, we further determined that management's discussion provided in various parts of the quarterly reports were not
adequate to provide an accurate basis for review.
Accordingly, we made necessary conforming changes in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” resulting from the correction of these errors, and relabeled certain financial information as “Not Reviewed” where
applicable.
The first amendment to that report was filed in response to the Comment Letter on Form 10-Q/A on October 19, 2012 and
amended the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2009, which was originally filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on November 16, 2009.
That amended report was therefore filed to supplement and amend information provided in the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 filed on November 16, 2009 by Acacia Diversified Holdings,
Inc. f/k/a Acacia Automotive, Inc. in order to fully disclose information then-disclosed in its financial results and in its Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
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Management does not consider any of the previously reported financial information to have contained material deficiencies. As
such, that amendment did not reflect any material changes to the financial statements of the Company, but was changed to properly reflect
periods in which the quarterly financial statements were not reviewed by the Company’s outside auditors.
12
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The following sections of that Form 10-Q/A were revised to reflect the restatement:
Part I
Item 1 – Financial Statements
Item 2 – Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Item 4(T) – Controls and Procedures; and
Part II
Item 5 – Other Information
Other than those amendments made in response to the Comment Letter, no attempt was made in that amendment to modify or
update other disclosures presented in the original Quarterly Report. That Amendment does not reflect events occurring after the filing of
the Original Quarterly Report or modify or update those disclosures, including the exhibits to the Original Quarterly Report affected by
subsequent events. Accordingly, that Amendment should be read in conjunction with our filings with the SEC subsequent to the filing of
the Original Quarterly Report, including any amendments to those filings.
In light of those amendments, readers were warned to not rely on the information disclosed for those three months and nine
months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 as reported on Form 10-Q by the Company on November 16, 2009. Except to the extent
relating to the restatement of our financial statements and other financial information described above, the financial statements and other
disclosure in that Form 10-Q/A did not reflect any events that occurred after the original Form 10-Q was initially filed on November
16, 2009. That is, the Company did not make any attempt therein to disclose or otherwise account for events subsequent to the periods
contemplated therein, other than those events specifically referenced therein.
The Company further determined that it was appropriate to restate and supplement certain information in its Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2009 filed on May 27, 2010 by Acacia Diversified Holdings, Inc. f/k/a Acacia Automotive,
Inc. in order to fully disclose information then-disclosed in its financial results and in its Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
On October 19, 2012 the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission an amended Annual Report on Form
10-K/A to supplement and amend information provided in the original filing.
The following sections of that Form 10-K/A were revised to reflect the restatement:
Part II
Item 7 – Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Item 8 - Financial Statements
Item 9A(T) – Controls and Procedures; and
Item 9B – Other Information
Other than those amendments made in response to the Comment Letter to the extent relating to the relabeling of selected
financial information as “Not Reviewed” and the restatement of the information referenced above, no attempt was made in that
Amendment to modify or update other disclosures presented in the original Annual Report for 2009 on Form 10-K. That amendment did
not reflect events occurring after the filing of the original Annual Report or modify or update those disclosures, including the exhibits to
the Original Annual Report affected by subsequent events. Accordingly, that amendment should be read in conjunction with our filings
with the SEC subsequent to the filing of the Original Annual Report on Form 10-K as initially filed on May 27, 2010, including any
amendments to those filings.
As a result of our previously reported financial results for the three months ended March 31, 2009 having not been reviewed by
the Company’s auditors and by reason of unintentional oversight and the Company in erroneously failing to label those results as having
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been “Not Reviewed” in our comparative financial information in the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for that period as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on July 23, 2010, the Company determined those portions of the quarterly report were not adequate
to provide an accurate basis for review. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the annual financial results of the Company were audited in 2009
and 2008.
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Moreover, we further determined that management's discussion provided in various parts of the quarterly reports were not
adequate to provide an accurate basis for review.
Accordingly, we made necessary conforming changes in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” resulting from the correction of these errors, and relabeled certain financial information as “Not Reviewed” where
applicable.
This first amendment of this report on Form 10-Q/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 19, 2012
amended the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010, which was originally filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on July 23, 2010. We filed that amendment in response to a Comment Letter received from the SEC
in connection with its review of the original Quarterly Report.
This Amended report was therefore filed to supplement and amend information provided in the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the three months ended March 31, 2009 filed on July 23, 2010 by Acacia Diversified Holdings, Inc. f/k/a Acacia Automotive, Inc. in
order to fully disclose information then-disclosed in its financial results and in its Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations. On July 26, 2012, the shareholders of the Company voted to change the name of the Company to
Acacia Diversified Holdings, Inc.
The following sections of that Form 10-Q/A were revised to reflect the restatement:
Part I
Item 1 – Financial Statements
Item 2 – Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Item 4(T) – Controls and Procedures; and
Part II
Item 5 – Other Information
Other than those amendments made in response to the Comment Letter, no attempt was made in that amendment to modify or
update other disclosures presented in the Original Quarterly Report. This Amendment does not reflect events occurring after the filing of
the Original Quarterly Report or modify or update those disclosures, including the exhibits to the Original Quarterly Report affected by
subsequent events. Accordingly, this Amendment should be read in conjunction with our filings with the SEC subsequent to the filing of
the Original Quarterly Report, including any amendments to those filings.
In light of the amendments provided herein, readers are warned to not rely on the information disclosed for those three months
ended March 31, 2009 as reported on Form 10-Q by the Company on July 23, 2010. Except to the extent relating to the restatement
of our financial statements and other financial information described above, the financial statements and other disclosure in this Form
10-Q/A do not reflect any events that have occurred after this Form 10-Q was initially filed on July 23, 2010. That is, the Company does
not make any attempt herein to disclose or otherwise account for events subsequent to the periods contemplated herein, other than those
events specifically referenced herein.
The Company further determined that, through an unintentional oversight, it had failed to file certain updated and amended
documents relating to its acquisition of the Chattanooga auction business that were changed from the time the documents were initially
executed and/or incorporated into the master documents as filed on Form 8-K on September 16, 2009, and the date of final closing of the
transactions on December 26, 2009.
To more fully comply, the Company on October 19, 2012 filed an amended Current Report on Form 8-K to supplement and
amend information provided in the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 16, 2009 in order to fully disclose information
then-disclosed under “Item 1.01. Entry into a Material Definitive Agreement”, and information provided in the Current Report on Form
8-K filed on December 30, 2009 in order to fully disclose information then-disclosed under “Item 2.01. Completion of Acquisition or
Disposition of Assets” by Acacia Diversified Holdings, Inc. f/k/a Acacia Automotive, Inc. To that extent, the Company also elected
to make disclosures under “Item 2.01. Creation of Financial Obligation”. While the Management Agreement and Asset Purchase
Agreement were executed on August 31, 2009, certain material terms to both agreements were modified following the Filings and
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December 26, 2009, the effective date of the acquisition transaction. A First Amendment to the Asset Purchase Agreement and the related
loan documents creating an obligation to the registrant were executed on December 10, 2009 with an effective date of December 26,
2009.
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On October 19, 2012 the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission its response to the Comment Letter,
the first amendment on Form 10-K/A for the period ended December 31, 2009, the first amendment on Form 10-Q/A for the period
ended September 30, 2009, the first amendment on Form 10-Q/A for the period ended March 31, 2010, and the first amendment to Form
8-K/A for events first reported on September 16, 2009 in connection with the prior presentment of our financial statements, management's
discussion and analysis thereof, controls and procedures and information presented on Forms 8-K.
On July 26, 2012, the shareholders of the Company voted to change the name of the Company to Acacia Diversified Holdings,
Inc., which name became effective on October 18, 2012.
Item 2.

Description of Properties

The Company operates an auto auction in North Augusta, South Carolina. In July 2008, the Company renewed a twelve-month
lease on the location where the Augusta Auto Auction has operated for several years. The lease term can be further extended and
currently has a monthly lease rate of $2,975. The facility consists of approximately five acres, houses two administrative buildings and
a two-lane auction arena, and provides parking for several hundred vehicles. The compound is fenced and protected by an electrified
security fence system as well as security systems in its buildings and auction arena. In addition to the main auction facility, the registrant
also leases property that is used for additional vehicle storage (both indoor and outdoor) and customer parking for approximately 400
additional customer vehicles on sale days. The indoor storage areas and part of the outdoor storage areas are protected by an electrified
security fence system as well as security systems in both areas. This property is located directly across the street from the main auction
facility and is leased on a month-to month basis for approximately $1283 per month. The Company also maintains administrative space in
Ocala, Florida, at a cost of approximately $621 per month, which it may cancel at any time. Excluding lease expenses at the discontinued
Chattanooga facility, these lease expense of the Company amounted to $53,383 per year in 2010 and 2009.
Item 3.

Legal Proceedings

In September, October and November of 2010, the Company, its CEO, and certain other related parties entered into litigation
resulting from disputes following the Company’s acquisition of the assets and related business of Chattanooga Auto Auction Limited
Liability Company in December of 2009. On February 28, 2012, all parties to those litigations entered into a global Settlement
Agreement and Release as first reported on the Current Reports on Forms 8-K filed March 6, 2012. Further discussion was set forth in the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2010 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on November 16, 2012. Reference is also made to the Current Report filed on Form 8-K November 16, 2012 containing the full text of
the Settlement Agreement and Release and related Exhibits including the Court orders stipulating dismissal of those actions, all of which
filings are incorporated herein by reference.
All the parties to the Settlement Agreement agreed to a mutual non-disparagement agreement and release from any liabilities or
future litigations. The Settlement Agreement and Release did not constitute an admission by the Company, its CEO, or any other party
of any liability or violation of law.
Item 4.

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

On July 26, 2012, the shareholders of the Company voted to change the name of the Company to Acacia Diversified Holdings,
Inc., which name became effective on October 18, 2012.
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PART II
Item 5.

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

There has been sporadic trading in our stock for the last four fiscal years. We are presently traded in the Pink Sheets under the
symbol ACCA. The following table sets forth information as reported by the National Association of Securities Dealers Composite Feed
or Other Qualified Interdealer Quotation Medium for the high and low bid and ask prices for each of the twelve quarters ending December
31, 2010. The following prices reflect inter-dealer prices without retail markup, markdown or commissions and may not reflect actual
transactions.
Closing Bid
High
Quarters ending in 2008
March 31
June 30
September 30
December 31
Quarters ending in 2009
March 31
June 30
September 30
December 31
Quarters ending in 2010
March 31
June 30
September 30
December 31

$
$
$
$
$

0.25
0.20
0.25
0.20

$

0.15
0.15
0.10
0.15

$

0.60
0.13
0.21
0.21

$

Closing Ask
Low
0.10
0.18
0.20
0.10

$

0.15
0.05
0.01
0.0003

$

$

$
$
$

High

0.0022
0.05
0.12
0.20

$

$
$
$

Low
1.05
1.01
0.95
0.66

$

.50
.85
2.00
0.51

$

2.00
0.99
0.90
0.90

$

$
$
$

1.01
0.70
0.55
0.50
0.50
0.16
0.10
0.10
0.10
0.90
0.90
0.60

As of September 30, 2012, the Company had 128 stockholders of record. We believe that we may also have as many as 200 or
more additional beneficial shareholders.
Holders of common stock are entitled to receive dividends as may be declared by our board of directors and, in the event
of liquidation, to share pro rata in any distribution of assets after payment of liabilities. The board of directors has sole discretion to
determine: (i) whether to declare a dividend; (ii) the dividend rate, if any, on the shares of any class of series of our capital stock, and if
so, from which date or dates; and (iii) the relative rights of priority of payment of dividends, if any, between the various classes and series
of our capital stock. We have not paid any dividends and do not have any current plans to pay any dividends.
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At its meeting of directors on February 1, 2007, the Company’s board of directors approved its 2007 Stock Option Plan which
was approved by our stockholders on November 2, 2007, reserving 1,000,000 shares to be issued thereunder. In subsequent resolutions,
the directors granted restricted stock, warrants, and options for compensation summarized as follows:
SUMMARY OF EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS
Number of
Weighted
Securities to be
Average
Issued Upon
Exercise Price
Exercise of
of
Outstanding
Outstanding
Options and
Options and
Warrants
Warrants
1,425,000 $
2.33
735,000
0.43
(255,000)
0.43
1,905,000 $
1.85

Plan Description
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Shareholders*
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Security Holders**
Options Forfeited by Former Holders***
Totals

Number of
Securities
Remaining
Available for
Future
Issuance
1,710,700
1,965,700
1,965,700

* Reflects (i) 475,000 warrants issued on May 29, 2007, at a strike price of $1.00 per share for a term of 10 years and which vested
immediately in exchange for conversion of 475,000 shares of Preferred stock of the Company for 475,000 shares of its Common stock;
and (ii) 950,000 warrants issued on the same date with the following conditions: 316,666 warrants issued at a strike price of $2.00 per
share and exercisable at any time on or after January 1, 2008 upon the meeting of certain goals, 316,667 warrants issued at a strike price
of $3.00 per share and exercisable at any time on or after January 1, 2009 upon the meeting of certain goals, and 316,667 warrants issued
at a strike price of $4.00 per share and exercisable at any time on or after January 1, 2010 upon the meeting of certain goals, but all of
those 950,000 warrants later considered to have lapsed due to ambiguous language at issuance. The Company issued the same amount of
new warrants on December 30, 2010, which vested immediately with a term of six years and a strike price the same as when originally
issued.
** Reflects grants under the 2007 Acacia Automotive Stock Incentive Plan. Effective January 1, 2008, the number of shares available
under Plan increased by 479,900 shares. Effective January 1, 2009, the number of shares available under the Plan increased by 482,500
shares, and effective January 1, 2010, the number of shares available under the Plan increased by 483,300 shares. The number of shares
in the Plan increases annually by an amount equal to 4% of the number of shares outstanding at the end of the fiscal year, and thus will
increase on January 1, 2011 in the additional amount of 483,300.
*** In subsequent events occurring on February 28, 2012, two former directors of the Company forfeited 255,000 options as a
requirement to the settlement of litigations with the Company on that date. Former director Tony Moorby forfeited 65,000 Common stock
purchase options and former director David Bynum forfeited 190,000 Common stock purchase options. Those 255,000 forfeited options
are now considered non-existent. (See Part I, Item 3 – “Legal Proceedings” and Part II, Item 9B – “Other Information”)
In addition to forfeiting Common stock purchase options as indicated above, the following table reflects 520,000 common shares
that were cancelled and returned to the Company’s treasury as a result of the settlement of litigations on February 28, 2012.
On February 28, 2012, further to the terms of the Settlement Agreement and Release attendant to the litigation, Mr. Tony
Moorby, a former officer and director of the Company, was required to return to the Company for cancellation the 500,000 Common
shares he was issued in 2007 for joining the Company.
In December 2009, the Company issued 20,000 shares of restricted Common stock to Alexis Ann Jacobs and Keith Whann,
the principals and former owners of the Chattanooga Auction, for services rendered to the Company. The issuance of those shares was
exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 pursuant to Section 4(2) thereof as a transaction not involving a
public offering. While the Company’s transfer agent recorded the transfer of those shares, the recipients of those issuances claimed they
never received the shares. In accordance with the Settlement Agreement and Release effected February 28, 2012, Ms. Jacobs and Mr.
Whann executed documents necessary to cancel those shares, which were subsequently returned to the Company’s treasury together with
Mr. Moorby’s shares. (See Part I, Item 3 – “Legal Proceedings” and Part II, Item 9B – “Other Information”)
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Shares Returned to the Company’s Treasury Following Settlement of Litigations
Common Stock
Shares
Par Value
(520,000) $
(520)

Lawsuit settlement 2/28/2012
Item 6.

Selected Financial Data
Not Applicable

Item 7.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following summarizes the factors affecting the operating results and financial condition of Acacia Diversified Holdings,
Inc., fka/Acacia Automotive, Inc. This discussion should be read together with the financial statements and the notes to financial
statements included elsewhere in this report. In addition to historical financial information, the following discussion and analysis contain
forward-looking statements.
Forward-Looking Statements
This Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (MD&A) contains forwardlooking statements that involve known and unknown risks, significant uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results,
levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, levels of activity, performance or
achievements expressed, or implied, by those forward-looking statements. You can identify forward-looking statements by the use of the
words may, will, should, could, expects, plans, anticipates, believes, estimates, predicts, intends, potential, proposed, or continue or the
negative of those terms. These statements are only predictions. In evaluating these statements, you should consider various factors which
may cause our actual results to differ materially from any forward-looking statements. Although we believe that the exceptions reflected
in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements.
Therefore, actual results may differ materially and adversely from those expressed in any forward-looking statements. We undertake no
obligation to revise or update publicly any forward-looking statements for any reason.
Executive Overview
With the acquisition of the Augusta Auto Auction on July 10, 2007, the Company commenced operations at that location and
conducted its first weekly auction under the Company's ownership and management on July 11th of that year.
On August 31, 2009, the Company entered into a Management Agreement with the owners of Chattanooga Auto Auction
Limited Liability Company, which provided for the Company to temporarily act as manager of that auction for the Seller from September
1, 2009, through December 25, 2009, as it awaited the transfer of ownership of the assets it was to acquire in an Asset Purchase
Agreement (see below). Under the terms of the Management Agreement, the Company was to receive 50% of the net profits of the
auction for the period. However, the Company soon entered into a verbal agreement with the Seller that it would forego the right to any
portion of the profits during that period if the Seller would agree to fund certain maintenance, repair, and improvements to the physical
plant and premises prior to the Company’s assumption of a lease thereon. Additionally, there was no accounting of the operations of the
Seller for that period provided to the Company until approximately April 1, 2010. The final result was that there were no profits shared.
With the acquisition of the Chattanooga Auto Auction on December 26, 2009, the Company obtained control of its second auto
auction, and conducted its first weekly auction on December 29th of that year. The Company’s lone operations in fiscal year 2009 were
those two operations. The Company deemed its Chattanooga subsidiary’s operations as discontinued effective as of August 31, 2010, the
last month for which the Company controlled the Chattanooga auction operation. The financial statements in the report on Form 10-Q
for the period ended June 30, 2010, September 30, 2010, and this report on Form 10-K for the period ended 12-31-2010 reflect that
determination. (See Part II, Item 9B – “Other Information” and Part I, Item 3 – “Legal Proceedings”)
The Company's Augusta auction sells vehicles and equipment for automotive dealers and commercial accounts, as well as for
the United States Marshals Service.
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Generally, as an industry standard, the volume of vehicles sold at the vehicle auctions is highest in the first and second calendar
quarters of each year and slightly lower in the third quarter. Fourth quarter sales are generally lower than all other quarters as used
vehicle auction volumes tend to decline during prolonged periods of winter weather conditions combined with holiday disruptions. This
seasonality could be affected, however, by the timing of auctions by special customers such as the United States Marshal Service or
others. While these standards are subject to short and medium-term variations, the Company's revenues therefore would generally be
expected to be highest in the first or second calendar quarter, while the fourth calendar quarter have the lowest revenues with profitability
affected by additional costs associated with the holidays and winter weather.
Discussion Regarding the Auto Auction Industry
Sales of used vehicles totaled 8.42 million units worth $81 billion in 2010, versus 8.92 million units worth $80.5 billion in 2009
at National Auto Auction Association (NAAA) member auctions in North America, according to the trade organization’s 14th annual
survey. The survey found that the number of vehicles entering auctions in 2010 decreased by 3.4% to 14.1 million units from 14.6 million
units in 2009. None of these figures include the more numerous auctions that are not members of the NAAA organization. Both the
Company's auctions are NAAA members.
In 2010, new car and light truck sales were up 10.6% to 11.5 million units versus 10.4 million in 2009. U.S. used vehicle sales
in 2010 accounted for 36.9 million units, up from 35.5 million in 2009, showing the first annual increase after four years of declines.
Discussion Regarding Car Park (Vehicles in Operation or VIO)
The Company continues to believe that auto auctions are largely recession-resistant because, in part, the industry is more
dependent on the size of the U.S. “Car Park” (the number of vehicles in operation or "VIO") than it is upon manufacturing output,
retail sales of motor vehicles, or other factors. While this has historically proven true, the recent periods of recession and economic
downturn caused measurable weakness in the overall auto auction industry, even though the Company's auction operations in Augusta
reflected sharply higher sales and revenues. The Company attributes this increase at its Augusta Auction to its skilled management and
implementation of proven practices after assuming control of its auctions.
The Car Park has changed little in recent years, accounting for 248.7 million units in 2007, 249.8 million in 2008, 248.9 million
in 2009, and 248.2 million units in 2010.
Consolidated Operating Results in 2010 and 2009
In 2010 our consolidated net loss declined to $216,921 from a loss of $274,834 in 2009, largely on a $61,816 net gain from
discontinued operations at Chattanooga. Our consolidated revenues increased in 2010 by approximately 26% reflecting gains in revenues
at our Augusta, virtually all of our revenues, of a similar amount. Our consolidated costs and expenses increased approximately 34%
versus 2009, largely reflecting increased expenses at our at our Augusta location resulting from special sales in which we marketed
hundreds of travel trailers for a major client. While those sales greatly fueled the auction’s overall performance and profitability, they
nonetheless caused the expenses to appear heavy, when in fact they were not by comparison. Those increased expenses for (i) subcontract
towing; (ii) outside services; (iii) auctioneers and ringmen; credit card merchant fees; and (v) sale day drivers, all of which accounted
for approximately $272,000 in increased costs in the period. Since total costs at the auction increased by $225,892 in 2010 versus 2009,
the absence of this increase of this additional $272,000 in expenses principally related to sale of travel trailers would have resulted in
an actual reduction of expense in 2010. EBITDA at the auction increased $122,199 in 2010 over 2009 or about 30%, before charges
for Management Fees paid to the parent, or an increase in actual net income of $190,416 or 73.39% before Management Fees. 2009
EBITDA on a consolidated basis improved approximately $7,000, or 7%, over 2009.
Similar to other industry concerns, the Company includes a category for Cost of Fees Earned in its Consolidated Statements
of Operations for the fiscal year ended 2010 and 2009. This category is similar in content to a cost of goods sold category utilized by
many other businesses, and includes certain production costs associated with the operation of the Company, and particularly its operating
subsidiary. Those costs include salaries of auction production personnel with related tax and benefit burdens; auctioneers and ringmen;
certain subscribed services; contract labor for lot operations, particularly on sale days and days immediately preceding or following
auction days; sale day drivers; arbitration mechanic on sale days; contract towing; pick up and delivery; rental of vehicles or equipment
to facilitate operations; direct tools, supplies and equipment; fuel expense for auction operation; maintenance and parts expense for lot
operations; vehicle damage associated with lot operations; vehicle transport damage; keys as outside services; title expense; shipping
costs including FedEx and related; bailout/reimbursement (contra) expenses, particularly relating to storage and transport of repossession
vehicles acquired for auction; ASI costs of goods sold, being an account the auction’s software operating system utilizes for applying costs
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The category Other Income (Expense) listed in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations for the fiscal year ended
2010 resulting in a total other income of approximately $160,000 for the Company. This was comprised of $137 in interest income from
a $150,000 certificate of deposit held by the Company and from funds held in its checking accounts, and $15,241 in interest expense
resulting from $176 paid on credit card interest, $8,245 in interest on capital leases, and $6,820 for interest on lines of credit. Also
included was a gain of $168,687 for settlement of indebtedness and lawsuits associated with discontinuing operations at the Company’s
Chattanooga location after August 31, 2010. Absent that settlement, Other Income and Expense for 2010 actually represented an amount
similar to the 2009 total. (See Part I, Item 3 - “Legal Proceedings” and Part II, Item 9B – “Other Information”)
The category Other Income (Expense) listed in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations for the fiscal year ended
2009 with a total other expense of $10,000 to the Company. This included $1,817 in interest income from a $150,000 certificate of
deposit held by the Company and from funds held in its checking accounts, $22,078 in interest expense resulting from $3,311 in credit
card interest charges, $8,573 interest on capital leases, and $10,194 on lines of credit. The Company also derived $2,130 from shortterm sublet income on two leased vehicles the Company assigned for use at the Chattanooga facility, $93 resulting from voiding an aged
outstanding check, and $8,038 due to an adjustment for credit related to discontinued operating software.
The combinations of the above incomes and expenses resulted in a net Total Other income to the Company of $159,973 in 2010
and total Other Expense to the Company of $10,000 in 2009.
Gain or loss on the sale of assets is included as a component of Operating Expenses on the Company’s Statements of Operations
in 2010. In 2010, the Company registered a gain of $2,935 on the sale of one of the Company’s vehicles. In 2009, the Company
registered a gain of $873 on disposal of technology equipment, a loss of $2,749 on disposal of a vehicle, and a loss of $762 on disposal of
telephone equipment for a net combined loss of $2,638, which has been shown as a prior year comparison on the Statements of Operations
incorporated within this report.
The Augusta Auction's improving revenues, virtually all of the Company’s 2010 revenues, resulted largely from increased sales
volumes at its traditional weekly dealer auction sale dates and from additional sales generated at a second weekly sale held at night. The
public can participate in the night auctions that not only bring increased unit sales volumes, but also generate increased fees as the public
is charged more than dealers to participate in the auction. The auction also adjusted upward the fees charged to dealers participating in
the auction to conform the fees more to industry practices.
In addition to across-the-board sales increases at the Augusta auction, the auction benefitted significantly from the entries of
a substantial number of travel trailers for sale by one of its clients. While our unit sales were up 16.1%, those trailer sales singularly
accounted for 7.0% of that gain. As a direct and proximate result of those sales increases, spurred by the trailers, the auction’s total
revenues grew in several key categories, most notably:
Buyers Fees
Seller’s Fees
Detail Shop Revenue
Mechanical Shop RevenueTransportation Revenue -

+$193,988
+ $29,336
+ $32,317
+ $17,435
+$174,263

-

Up
Up
Up
Up
Up

32.50%
5.58%
613.21%
212.40%
379.39%

Marshaling (storage) revenues, due primarily from U.S. Marshal confiscated units was down 34.77%, or $23,569 versus the
same period in 2009.
The following table sets forth certain information about changes at the Augusta Auto Auction regarding units offered, that is, the
number of units brought to the auto auction, entered into the system and offered for sale, the units actually sold, and the conversion rate,
that is, the number of units actually sold as a percentage of the number of units brought through the auction for sale, as well as changes
in total revenues comparing 2010 and 2009:

2010 Units Offered vs. 2009
2010 Units Sold vs. 2009
2010 Conversion Rate
2009 Conversion Rate
2010 Total Revenues vs. 2009*

Twelve
Months
+10.87
+16.10
53
51
+25.62
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* Includes all revenue streams for both years rather than buy and sell fee revenues only.
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Consolidated employee expense, which included the corporate expense and the expenses at the auctions, increased in 2010
principally because of salary and bonus compensations, much of which related to increased sales volumes.
Consolidated general and administrative expense increased about $160,000 reflecting increased promotional fees, settlement of
litigation, and discontinuing operations at Chattanooga.
The $57,946 decline in depreciation and amortization costs reflects a reduction in capital expenditures in recent periods. We will
continue to accrue an annualized amount of approximately $37,000 per year in amortization expense through mid-year 2017 related to a
customer list, also part of the purchase of the Augusta auction.
Critical Accounting Policies
Our financial statements and accompanying notes have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted
accounting principles ("GAAP") applied on a consistent basis. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting periods.
We regularly evaluate the accounting policies and estimates that we use to prepare our financial statements. A complete summary
of these policies is included in note 2 of the notes to our financial statements. In general, management's estimates are based on historical
experience, information from third party professionals, and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the facts
and circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates made by management.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Our accountants have issued, in their audit report, a going concern opinion reflecting a conclusion that our operations may not
be able to continue because of a lack of financial resources.
A given auction will generate large receivables and payables, only part of which are revenues and expenses, representing
receivables from purchasers of vehicles and payables to those selling vehicles. Settling these transactions, not only the cash transfers
between buyers and sellers but administrative tasks such as title clearance on vehicles, typically takes only a few days after an auction.
Frequently, when we hold an auction near the end of a quarter, those unsettled receivables and payables will appear large relative to
revenues, particularly since these receivables and payables reflect not only our fees but the sales price of the vehicles, and may distort the
ratio of receivables or payables to revenues, causing them to appear exceptionally large.
We must have readily available funds to facilitate these transactions. Accordingly, we have a $300,000 line of credit with
Wachovia Bank, N.A. for use by our Augusta Auction, secured by the Company’s deposits at the bank and guaranteed by the Company’s
CEO. Additionally, since 2007 the Company maintained a certificate of deposit with the Wachovia Bank of just over $150,000, partially
guaranteeing its $300,000 line of credit for use at the Augusta auction. Financing at the Augusta unit has been satisfactory, and liquidity
there has been sufficient to maintain the auction’s operations. In subsequent events, Wachovia Bank was acquired by Wells Fargo Bank,
who declined to continue its line of credit with the Augusta Auction. In subsequent events, that line of credit was cancelled at the end
of January 2011 by Wells Fargo Bank, who had recently acquired Wachovia Bank, and did not find the Company to fall within its
underwriting guidelines. Following those events, the Company’s CEO personally arranged for and guaranteed short-term interventional
financing for the Company to accommodate the auction’s needs, including direct injections of capital, loans from family and related
parties, and deferral of his salary and expenses. As a result of those activities by the Company’s CEO, Mr. Sample, the auction’s financial
posture was stabilized.
The Company looks to its operations to provide cash flow and cash return on our investment. The operating cash flow from our
Augusta operation was not sufficient to support the Parent Company’s operations on a consolidated basis as of the close of the fiscal year
2010, requiring the intervention of the CEO as stated above. Going forward, the Company may have to reduce overheads, increase cash
flow from operations, and/or acquire additional operations sufficient to cover the costs of overheads in order to maintain a positive cash
flow.
The Company’s Augusta auction operations continue to flourish and grow, but ultimately could outgrow the present facility. As a
result, the Company may ultimately be forced to seek a larger operating facility for its auction operations there, since the auction may not
accommodate the desired growth at its present location. In that event, the Company will be faced with a need to raise additional capital
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to fund the changes. There is no assurance the Company will be able to secure the funding to do so, and as a result its future growth
opportunities may ultimately be limited.
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The Company's cash in fiscal year 2010 was provided by management fee revenues assessed to the Company's Augusta Auto
Auction operations and by personal financial support from the Company’s CEO. The Company had a negative net cash flow as a
consolidated entity in 2010, exclusive of cash contributions made by its CEO, of $9,922. This resulted from a negative net cash flow
from operating activities of $19,424 driven by a reduction in cash from continuing operations of $164,732 offset by a gain in cash of
$145,308 from discontinuing activities at Chattanooga; net cash provided from investing activities of $81,480 resulting from $8,793 cash
used in continuing activities, offset by cash of $90,273 provided from discontinuing activities in Chattanooga; a reduction in cash of
$71,978 from financing activities resulting from $58,168 in cash used in continuing activities, coupled with a reduction in cash of $13,810
resulting from discontinuing activities at Chattanooga. This net decrease in cash of $9,922 in 2010 compared to an increase in cash of
$15,449 for 2009.
Cash Balance vs. Overdraft
Our auction operating software accounts for checks made as payments to sellers when written, even though they may not actually
be issued to the seller, since the sellers are only paid when they actually present to the auction a title representing ownership in any unit
sold. Additionally, the auction’s rules require that it cannot deposit the buyer’s funds until we provide him with the title representing
ownership of the vehicle purchased. The auction’s operating software systems, however, creates a check or “virtual” check immediately
following sale of the unit, whether or not the title has been presented. Hence, the operating and thus, financial, systems reflect that we
have issued a large number of checks to sellers when, in fact, they have on been “virtually” issued but not “physically” issued, resulting
in the appearance that funds have been paid to sellers when in fact they have not yet been released. In those instances where the title
has not yet been presented, and where the system indicates that a virtual payment has been made to the seller, the auction is also not
allowed to deposit the purchase payment funds from the buyers of those units, thus making it appear as if our CAR (checking) account is
overdrafted – when in truth and in fact it is not. Thus, we actually have a cash balance in the CAR account, generally quite significantly
so, while the system shows as a virtual concept that the account is overdrafted. The software system used by the auction is provided by
Auction Software, Inc. (ASI), is in use by nearly 90 independent auctions, is the most common independent auction operating system in
use in the United States, and is in the opinion of the auction the best software available for its use at this time. One must therefore review
the balance sheet to see the number of ASI payables and ASI receivables and look at the cash in the account to determine the actual
status. That appears to be common practice in this type of industry. Any actual overdraft account as depicted in the Company’s financial
reporting is reviewed by the Company’s auditors to reflect those outstanding checks to the Car Account and insure accurate reporting.
The Company will require substantial infusions of working capital or a substantial increase in the cash generated from operations
to insure long-term liquidity, and may seek infusions of working capital in the form of equity or debt capital, the former being considered
most beneficial to the Company, but not being considered a viable option in the economic conditions the country has experienced since
2008. There is no assurance the Company will be successful in obtaining infusions of capital to fuel its growth. As such, the Company
determined to concentrate on maximizing its opportunities at the auction level, and has heretofore been quite successful in that effort. The
Company’s corporate overhead is not large by industry standards, and could foreseeably be covered by revenues from operations of its
units given continuing growth beyond 2010.
Accounts Receivable
Trade receivables include the unremitted purchase price of vehicles purchased by third parties at the auctions, fees to be collected
from those buyers and amounts for services provided by the Company related to certain consigned vehicles in our possession. These
amounts due with respect to the consigned vehicles are generally deducted in settlement from the sales proceeds upon the eventual
auction or other disposition of the related vehicles. Due to the nature of the Company's business, substantially all trade and finance
receivables are due from vehicle dealers, salvage buyers and sellers, institutional, commercial and fleet sellers, governmental agencies,
and insurance companies. The Company has possession of vehicles or vehicle titles collateralizing a significant portion of the trade and
finance receivables. The Company’s receivables are recorded when billed, advanced, or accrued and represent claims against third parties
that will be settled in cash. The carrying value of the Company’s receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, represents their
estimated net realizable value. The Company estimates its allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical collection trends, the age
of the outstanding receivables and existing economic conditions. The allowances for doubtful accounts and credit losses are based on
management’s evaluation of the receivables portfolio under current conditions, the volume of the portfolio, overall portfolio credit quality,
review of specific collection issues and such other factors which in management’s judgment deserve recognition in estimating losses. At
December 31, 2010 and 2009 the Company made provision for losses of $32,000 and $25,685, respectively, charging off nothing in 2010
and $25,685 in 2009.
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Revenue Recognition
Revenues and the related costs are recognized when the services are performed. Auction fees from sellers and buyers are
recognized upon the sale of the vehicle through the auction process. Most of the vehicles that are sold at auction are consigned to the
Company by the seller and held at the Company's facilities. The Company does not take title to these consigned vehicles and recognizes
revenue when a service is performed as requested by the owner of the vehicle. The Company does not record the gross selling price of the
consigned vehicles sold at auction as revenue. Instead, the Company records only its auction fees and other charges as revenue because
it does not take title to the consigned vehicles, has no influence on the vehicle auction selling price agreed to by the seller and buyer at
the auction and the fees that the Company receives for its services are generally based on fixed amounts according to locally-published
rate schedules. Revenues from reconditioning, logistics, vehicle inspection and certification, titling, and salvage recovery services are
generally recognized when the services are performed.
Allowance for Bad Debts
The Company estimates its allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical collection trends, the age of the outstanding
receivables and existing economic conditions. The allowances for doubtful accounts and credit losses are based on management’s
evaluation of the receivables portfolio under current conditions, the volume of the portfolio, overall portfolio credit quality, review of
specific collection issues and such other factors which in management’s judgment deserve recognition in estimating losses. At December
31, 2010 and 2009, there was no allowance for doubtful accounts required based on management's estimates. For the year ended
December 31, 2009 the Company recognized uncollectable accounts receivable losses of $25,685. Those amounts were charged off at
the direction of our independent accounting firm due to their aging.
In 2010, the Company made a provision for losses in the amount of $32,000, but did not write off any accounts. As such, the
provision for losses was not used.
Stock-Based Compensation
The Company accounts for stock options in accordance with FASB ASC 505, “Equity,” and FASB ASC 718,
“Compensation—Stock Compensation”. Accordingly, stock compensation expense has been recognized in the statement of operations
based on the grant date fair value of the options for the year ended December 31, 2010.
Under ASC 718 and 505, the fair value of options is estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes-Merton (“BlackScholes”) option-pricing model, which requires the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility.
Volatility is determined using historical stock prices over a period consistent with the expected term of the option.
The Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R "Share-Based Payment"
("SFAS No. 123(R)") to account for stock-based compensation under ASC 718 and ASC 605, Compensation-Stock Compensation. The
Codification requires that all stock-based compensation be recognized as expense in the financial statements and that such cost be
measured at the fair value of the award at the grant date. An additional requirement of ASC 718 is that estimated forfeitures be considered
in determining compensation expense. Estimating forfeitures did not have a material impact on the determination of compensation
expense in 2010 and 2009. ASC 718 requires cash flows resulting from tax deductions from the exercise of stock options in excess
of recognized compensation cost (excess tax benefits) to be classified as financing cash flows. This requirement had no impact on our
consolidated statement of cash flows in 2010 and 2009, as no options were exercised. During the years ended December 31, 2010 and
2009, respectively, the Company issued no stock awards to employees.
On December 23, 2010, the Company issued stock options to purchase 145,000 shares of the Company’s common stock for $.60
per share, with a life of ten (10) years in connection with the Board of Directors authorization. The aggregate value of these stock options
was $73,064. These options generally vest over a four-year period.
On November 6, 2009, the Company issued stock options to purchase 195,000 shares of the Company’s common stock for $.10
per share, with a life of ten (10) years in connection with the Board of Directors authorization. The aggregate value of these stock options
was $17,550. These options can be exercised upon the discretion of the option holder. Black-Sholes model assumptions were:

Estimated fair value
Expected life (years)
Risk free interest rate

2010
$ 0.55
4.3
1.07

2009
$ 0.09
5.0
%
2.19
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Volatility
Dividend yield

168
-

%
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Risk-free interest rate – This is the yield on U.S. Treasury Securities posted at the date of grant (or date of modification) having
a term equal to the expected life of the option. An increase in the risk-free interest rate will increase compensation expense.
Expected life—years – This is the period of time over which the options granted are expected to remain outstanding. Options
granted by the Company had a maximum term of ten years. An increase in the expected life will increase compensation expense.
Expected volatility – Actual changes in the market value of stock are used to calculate the volatility assumption. An increase in
the expected volatility will increase compensation expense.
Dividend yield – This is the annual rate of dividends per share over the exercise price of the option. An increase in the dividend
yield will decrease compensation expense. The Company does not currently pay dividends and has no immediate plans to do so in the
near future.
The fair values of options issued are being amortized over the respective vesting periods (primarily five years). The amortized
cost recognized for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 were $62,396 and $64,407, respectively. Future amortization of the
fair value of options is as follows:
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015

Amount
$62,396
48,053
24,259
1,700
$198,804
Stock Options
2010
Weighted
Number of
Average
Shares
Exercise Price
590,000
$ 0.39
145,000
0.60
(255,000
)
(0.43
480,000
0.43
371,250
$ 0.38

Outstanding at beginning of the year
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited or cancelled
Outstanding at end of year
Exercisable

2009
Weighted
Number of
Average
Shares
Exercise Price
395,000
$ 0.51
195,000
0.10
)
590,000
0.39
55,000
$ 0.59

Warrants
The exercisable outstanding Common stock purchase warrants for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 were 2,206,250
and 1,206,250 with a weighted average exercise price of $1.89 and $0.96 per share, respectively.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of cost over fair value of identifiable net assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually in the second quarter, or more frequently as impairment indicators arise. The goodwill impairment test is a twostep test. Under the first step, the fair value of each reporting unit is compared with its carrying value (including goodwill). If the fair
value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, an indication of goodwill impairment exists for the reporting unit and we must
perform step two of the impairment test (measurement). Under step two, an impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the carrying
amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill over the implied fair value of that goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined by
allocating the fair value of the reporting unit in a manner similar to a purchase price allocation, in accordance with ASC 805, Business
Combinations. The residual fair value after this allocation is the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill. Fair value of the
reporting unit is determined using a discounted cash flow analysis. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, step
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two does not need to be performed. These events may include changes in the manner in which we intend to use an asset or a decision to
sell an asset. The Company’s management believes that no impairment is deemed necessary at December 31, 2010.
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Overall, our operations were close to self-funding in 2010 with a negative net cash flow of $9,922 for the year. The Company has
accrued salaries of $40,491 owed to Mr. Steven Sample, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer. This deferral of salary is not pursuant
to any employment agreement but reflects an accommodation by Mr. Sample to assist the Company’s cash management in 2010 and
accommodations for periods thereafter. The Company does not anticipate paying Mr. Sample in either preferred or common stock.
We continue to plan for the expansion of the Company through acquisitions and will have to raise additional capital to fund those
acquisitions. Further, we would seek to eventually establish a wholesale vehicle floorplan financing facility for purchasers of automobiles
at our auctions, which would also require additional financing.
Discussion Regarding the Company’s Consolidated Operating Results
Discussion Regarding EBITDA
EBITDA, as presented herein, is a supplemental measure of our performance that is not required by, or presented in accordance
with, generally accepted accounting principles in the United States, or GAAP. It is not a measurement of our financial performance under
GAAP and should not be considered as a substitute for net income (loss) or any other performance measures derived in accordance with
GAAP or as substitutes for cash flow from operating activities as measures of our liquidity.
EBITDA is defined as net income (loss), plus interest expense net of interest income, depreciation and amortization. Use of
EBITDA as an evaluation of performance is commonly used in the vehicle auction industry.
Management uses the EBITDA measure to evaluate our performance, to compare our performance to major auction companies'
results, and to evaluate our results relative to certain incentive compensation targets. Management believes its inclusion is appropriate to
provide additional information to investors for purposes of comparisons. EBITDA has limitations as analytical tools, and should not be
considered in isolation, or as a substitute for analysis of the results as reported under GAAP. While the Company believes that EBITDA
may be a useful tool in comparing the financial performance of the Company to other auto auction entities, it may not be comparable to
similarly titled measures reported by other companies.
The following tables represent the consolidated EBITDA results for the Company during 2010 and 2009:

Net income (loss)
Add back:
Income taxes
Interest expense, net of interest income
Depreciation and amortization
EBITDA

Year Ended
December 31,
December 31,
2010
2009
$
(216,921) $
(274,834)
15,104
96,352
$

(105,465) $

20,261
154,298
(100,275)

In addition to the non-cash depreciation and amortization, we accrued for the issuance of stock options $185,130 in 2010 and
$64,707 in 2009. Applying those amounts from the above table increases the EBITDA totals to reflect a positive EBITDA of $79,665
and a negative EBITDA of $33,751 for 2010 and 2009 respectively.
Liquidity and Need for Additional Capital
The Company is currently engaged in its plan of seeking to grow through acquisitions as well as through organic means. To
succeed in doing so, the Company will require additional capital, which the Company anticipates raising through sale of Common stock.
The Company’s liquidity in 2010 was supplemented through August 31, 2010 by a $2,000,000 line of credit through an
independent source at its Chattanooga Auction operation, and by a $300,000 line of credit with Wachovia Bank, N.A. at its North Augusta
location. Both those lines of credit were used for general business purposes and to cover some instances in which payments to dealers
selling vehicles through the auctions are advanced prior to collecting payments from buyers of those vehicles. As of December 31, 2010,
the Company held a certificate of deposit with Wachovia Bank of just over $150,000 guaranteeing its line of credit in North Augusta.
Additionally, the Company’s liquidity has been assisted by its CEO. The line of credit in Chattanooga was discontinued as of August 31,
Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
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2010, when the Company accounted for its operations in Chattanooga as discontinued. The Company’s CEO also personally guaranteed
the lines of credit of the Company. The Company did not attempt to secure capital through a private placement of its securities in 2010.
(See Part II, Item 9B – “Other Information”)
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The lenders at Augusta and Chattanooga charge an interest rate equal to: (a) prime plus 1.5% on the outstanding daily balance,
if any; and, (b) the greater of (i) the sum of the one month London interbank offered rate (Libor) as published in the Wall Street Journal
(or such other publication or reference reasonably selected by the Lender if no longer published in the Wall Street Journal) plus 500 basis
points, or (ii) 6.0% percent per annum, respectively. The line of credit the Company has obtained against its August facility is secured by
its demand deposits at the lender, Wachovia Bank, in the approximate amount of $150,000. Conversely, the line of credit the Company
holds with regards to its Chattanooga facility is secured by the guarantees of both the Company and its CEO.
In 2009 the Company's liquidity was supplemented by assistance from its CEO and by a $300,000 line of credit with
Wachovia Bank, N.A. at its North Augusta location under the same terms as indicated above. That line of credit was used for general
business purposes and to cover some instances in which payments to dealers selling vehicles through the auctions are advanced prior to
collecting payments from buyers of those vehicles. As of December 31, 2009, the Company held a certificate of deposit with Wachovia
Bank of just over $150,000 guaranteeing its line of credit in North Augusta. The Company’s CEO also personally guaranteed the lines of
credit of the Company.
The Company may ultimately be compelled to seek a larger operating facility for its Augusta auction operation should the
business continue to grow at its present rate. This plan would require additional capital, which the Company may not be able to obtain.
The Company anticipates seeking additional capital through equity investments, but does not yet have a planned date or target
amount for any such offering. Moreover, no guarantees can be made that, should the Company endeavor to sell its equity securities, that
it will be able to find willing buyers for such securities. The Company is planning for its operations to provide sufficient operating capital
to fund the corporate overhead, but the implementation of the litigation proceedings in the fourth quarter of 2010 and the costs of those
legal actions have placed an increased burden on its cash.
The following table sets forth certain obligations for which the Company has contracted:
Contractual Obligations
Long-Term Debt Obligations
Capital Lease Obligations
Operating Lease Obligations*
Totals

Total
$
79,299
53,353
$132,652

Less Than 1
Year
$
21,467
53,353
$74,820

1-3 Years
$
57,832
$57,832

4-5 Years
$
$
-

More Than 5
Years
$
$
-

* The Company’s operating lease at its Augusta operations and for its administrative use are on a month-to-month basis and have
amounted to $53,383 per year in 2010 and 2009, and have been reflected above as if on an annual basis for one future year.
Financing of Planned Expansions and Other Expenditures
If sufficient funding should become available, the Company anticipates making its entry into the wholesale vehicle inventory
floor plan financing segment of the industry by providing floor plan and “float” financing to its automobile dealer clients. Floor plan
financing refers to medium-length wholesale financing terms, usually to a maximum of 90 to 120 days. “Float” financing refers to shorterterm wholesale vehicle financing-usually to a maximum of 30 to 60 days, often related to promotional sales activities.
The Company anticipates using the launch of those local financing activities as a springboard to providing financing services to
its clients on a regional and ultimately a national basis. The Company plans to establish a stand-alone subsidiary to accommodate that
business model, and to institute those services in its present and future auction operations and potentially to certain other selected wellqualified clients. The Company anticipates raising capital to accommodate the funding needs for these operations through a combination
of the sale of Common stock and the establishment of credit facilities with banks or other lenders.
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements And Recent Accounting Standards
The Company has implemented all new accounting pronouncements that are in effect and that may impact its financial
statements and does not believe that there are any other new accounting pronouncements that have been issued that might have a
material impact on its financial position or results of operations.
26
Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

Table of Contents

In May 2009, the FASB issued new guidance on subsequent events. The new guidance, which is now a part of ASC 855,
Subsequent Events, requires the disclosure of the date through which an entity has evaluated subsequent events and whether that
represents the date the financial statements were issued or were available to be issued. The provisions of the new guidance were effective
for interim and annual periods ending after June 15, 2009. The adoption of the new guidance on June 30, 2009 did not have a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
In June 2009, the FASB issued guidance under ASC 105, “Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.” This guidance
established a new hierarchy of GAAP sources for non-governmental entities under the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The
Codification is the sole source for authoritative U.S. GAAP and supersedes all accounting standards in U.S. GAAP, except for those
issued by the SEC. The guidance was effective for financial statements issued for reporting periods ending after September 15, 2009. The
adoption had no impact on the Company’s financial position, cash flows or results of operations.
In August 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-05, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820) — Measuring
Liabilities at Fair Value,” related to fair value measurement of liabilities. This update provides clarification that in circumstances in which
a quoted price in an active market for an identical liability is not available, a reporting entity is required to measure fair value using one
or more valuation techniques. This guidance is effective for the first reporting period beginning after issuance.
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Not Applicable
Item 8.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The response to this item is submitted as a separate section of this Form 10-K. See “Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statements
and Reports on Form 8-K.”
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None
Item 9A(T). Controls and Procedures
Inherent Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls Over Financial Reporting
As is typical with most smaller enterprises, our control processes are oriented toward operations, and production of financial
statements reflects an outgrowth of operations and results of those operations. Internally, financial statements are a management tool to
evaluate the operations and not an end of those operations. We closely monitor the daily results of our cash position and make certain that
our cash position is adequate for the foreseeable future. Our financial statements are generated as part of the reporting on our operations,
one metric of our operations, and as part of our obligations as a public entity.
Management, including our Chief Executive Officer who acts as our Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that our disclosure
controls and procedures will prevent all errors and fraud, and our present efforts are oriented on improving the availability and
thoroughness of information to management and its efficient reduction to generate financial statements. In designing and evaluating
the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. Further, the design of a
control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in
evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no
evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been
detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur
because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of
two or more people, or by management’s override of the control. The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain
assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated
goals under all potential future conditions. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system,
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
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Disclosure Controls and Procedures
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our
Exchange Act reports, such as this report on Form 10-K, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, particularly our
Chief Executive Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding operations and required disclosure.
The Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management,
including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of
the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objective pursuant to Exchange
Act Rule 13a-14. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures were, for the reasons set forth below, not effective as of December 31, 2010.
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term
is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, particularly our chief
executive officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework
set forth in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO)
During the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company did not make changes in its internal control.
In 2009, our independent auditor indicated that we had three material weaknesses: (i) Reconciliations and account analysis were
not performed in a timely manner as the Company did not have fully trained financial accounting personnel, which resulted in adjusting
journal entries; (ii) The sales and accounts receivable software was not integrated with the financial accounting software and accounting
personnel did not perform routine reconciliations of data entered on the sales reporting system to appropriate control accounts in the
general ledger system with reconciliations made in the aggregate without individual account scrutiny regardless of materiality; and (iii)
Before the audit sign off date the Company suffered a system failure. Even though there was no apparent loss of data, there was a failure
of operations personnel to perform systematic and recurring data backups on a routine basis.
During fiscal 2010 at the Company's Augusta and parent Company operations, the Company performed reconciliations and
account analysis in a timely manner using a fully trained financial accountant. However, with the acquisition of its Chattanooga
subsidiary on December 26, 2009, the Company attempted to reconcile Chattanooga's software and data with the parent Company's
software and data, but was unsuccessful in achieving a timely melding of the systems. In addition, the Company had difficulty in locating
financial personnel who were proficient with Chattanooga's software, all of which resulted in failure to reconcile its accounts to the
Annual Report in a timely manner. Ultimately the Company installed its own accounting software at the Chattanooga location to establish
a parallel accounting system with all its units, allowing for proper reconciliations and consolidation of the operating units and the Parent.
During this period, many reconciliations and account analysis were not performed in a timely manner. The Company made efforts to
train the appropriate personnel at all locations to improve the speed and accuracy of reconciliations, and has also considered the addition
of a qualified controller to its corporate team. The Company considers that its actions will mitigate these issues in the future.
As with most other independent vehicle auction companies of its size, the Company’s auction sales and accounts receivable
software, as a part of its auction operating software, is not integrated with its financial accounting software. The integration requires
additional meticulous steps to be undertaken on a regular basis as well as general business review of business practices reflected by the
information. We continue to press for efficient integration of information and seek qualified personnel to effect these processes, but do not
anticipate integrating its sales and accounts receivable software into its financial accounting software. After reviewing available software
systems, the Company does not consider this to be a necessary, viable, or available option.
After the Company suffered the computer server failure at its Augusta location in 2010, the Company determined that its
practices in backing up and protecting certain digital financial data were insufficient. While the Company at all times backed up its
digital data from the auction operating systems on a daily basis, it had not been making daily backups of its financial data at the Augusta
site. The data in question covered a period from mid-February to mid-April of 2010, was protected by hard copy financial records, was
restored within a short time after the anomaly, and resulted in no loss of financial data, either digital or otherwise. Although there was no
loss or damage, the Company recognized its deficiency in that area and immediately initiated new and improved provisions for protecting
and preserving its digital data and information at all locations.
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This Annual Report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered accounting firm regarding internal control
over financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by the Company’s registered public accounting firm pursuant
to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the Company to provide only the management’s report in this
Annual Report.
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Item 9B. Other Information
In 2010, options to purchase 125,000 shares were issued to eligible non-employee directors. Upon the passing of director Frank
Lawrence in 2012, this figure was reduced by 12,300 shares reflecting non-vested options, resulting in a net of 112,700* shares issued to
eligible non-employee directors. Additionally, 20,000 options were issued to employees, with an aggregate value of $73,064.
* This figure of 112,700 options is net of 12,300 options held by Mr. Frank J. Lawrence, a former director of the Company, but
which options expired following his passing in 2012.
During Q1 2010, the Company's CEO acquired 20,114 shares of the Company's Common stock by purchasing them on the
open market at an average price per share of $0.302. Those transactions were reported by him as the Reporting Person on SEC Forms
4 dated 1/15, 1/19, 2/4, 2/11, 2/18, 2/23, and 3/11 of 2010. During Q2 2010, the Company’s CEO acquired an additional 500 shares of
the Company’s stock by purchasing them on the open market at an average price per share of $0.927 per share. Those transactions were
reported by him as the Reporting person on SEC Forms 4 dated 4/6, 5/4, and 5/14 of 2010. The CEO, as the Reporting Person, has never
sold any shares of the Company and does not currently have any plans to do so.
On October 18, 2012 the Company changed its name from Acacia Automotive, Inc. to Acacia Diversified Holdings, Inc. The
Company will continue to file its Quarterly Reports 10-Q and its Annual Reports 10-K under the name Acacia Automotive, Inc. until
the reporting of its Quarterly Report 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2012. However, the Company will file any interim 8-K
Current Reports or other special reports under the name Acacia Diversified Holdings, Inc. effective with the changing of its name.
On December 26, 2009, the Company completed the acquisition of certain assets of Chattanooga Auto Auction Limited Liability
Company for cash consideration in the amount of $5,000. Acacia Chattanooga Vehicle Auction, Inc., a subsidiary of Acacia Automotive,
Inc., operated that auction from a leased facility in Chattanooga, Tennessee prior to accounting for it as discontinued operations effective
August 31, 2010, as reported on Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2010 as filed on October 19, 2012, and on
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2010 filed on November 19, 2012, both of which are incorporated
herein by reference. These events were also reported on the Current Reports on Forms 8-K filed on March 6, 2012 and November 19,
2012, which are further incorporated herein by reference. (See Part II, Item 9B – “Other Information”)
On July 31, 2012 the Company sold the assets and business related to its Acacia Augusta Vehicle Auction, Inc. That transaction
was approved by the majority of the shareholders of the Company in actions by less than unanimous written consent of the shareholders
representing more than 67% of the voting stock of the Company. In addition to approving the sale and disposal of the Augusta assets,
the shareholder action also approved the restatement of the Company’s Bylaws, Amendment and restatement of the Company’s articles
of incorporation, extension of the employment agreement of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, changing the name of the Company
from Acacia Automotive, Inc. to Acacia Diversified Holdings, Inc., and ratified the Company’s Acacia Diversified Holdings, Inc. 2012
Stock Incentive Plan that replaced the Company’s Acacia Automotive, Inc. 2007 Stock Incentive Plan. The details of all these transaction
were reported on the Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 27, 2012, which includes a full detail the actions taken and is incorporated
herein by reference. (See Part II, Item 9B – “Other Information”)
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance
Executive Officers and Directors
The directors and executive officers of the Company, and their respective ages, as of December 31, 2010, and positions held
with the Company, were as follows:
Name
Steven L. Sample
Patricia Ann Arnold
Danny Gibbs
James C. Hunter, MD
V. Weldon Hewitt
Frank Lawrence

Age
63
54
54
54
74
61

Position
Director, Chairman of the Board, and Chief
Executive Officer
Secretary
Director
Director
Director
Director

Steven L. Sample became a director and officer of the Company in August 2006 when he was named as a Director and Chief
Executive Officer. From January 2004 through December 2005, he served as Executive Director of Sales for ADESA Corporation, the
second-largest automobile auctions conglomerate in North America. From January 2002 through December 2003, he was the General
Sales Manager of ADESA’s Ocala, Florida Auto Auction where he turned that auction’s 2001 loss of more than $800,000 to a profit
of more than $800,000 in 2002 and subsequent years. From September 1990 through December 2001, he was employed by MidAmerica Auto Auction, an Anglo-American Auto Auction (Anglo-American later being acquired by ADT and renamed ADT Automotive
Auctions), which was generally acquired by Manheim Auctions in 2000, with Mr. Sample serving as General Sales Manager and in other
strategic capacities.
Patricia Ann Arnold was named Secretary of the Company on February 1, 2007. Since January of 2008, Ms. Arnold has served
as Executive Assistant to the Managing Director, Executive Vice President of Operations and Executive Vice President of Development of
Lend Lease (US) Public Partnerships LLC (f/k/a Actus Lend Lease). From 2002 through 2007, Ms. Arnold served as a Labor &
Employment Paralegal with the law firm of Baker, Donelson, Bearman, Caldwell & Berkowitz; Litigation Paralegal with Stewart Estes
and Donell from 1998 to 2002; and, Litigation Paralegal with Manier, Herod, Hollobaugh & Smith, in Nashville, Tennessee. Prior to the
Nashville employment, Ms. Arnold was employed in similar positions with law firms in Louisville, Kentucky, since 1984
Danny R. Gibbs was appointed to the Company's Board of Directors on February 1, 2007. Prior to that and commencing
in 1984, Mr. Gibbs, a co-founder of Gibbs Construction, Inc. served as its President, General Manager, director, and Chief Financial
Officer until November 2000 when the Company’s assets and liabilities were transferred to a receiver in bankruptcy. From January
2000 through December 2003, Mr. Gibbs was a Senior Project Manager for Thacker Operating Company responsible for estimating
costs of construction projects, managing and overseeing them. Beginning in January 2004 he became the Senior Project Manager for
Dimensional Construction, Inc..
Dr. James C. Hunter was appointed to the board of directors on February 1, 2007. In April 2008 he was named Chief Medical
Officer for the Carolinas Medical Center in Charlotte, North Carolina, where he is responsible for physician credentialing and relations
with oversight for all quality efforts. In 2005 and prior to April 2008, he was named Chief Medical Officer, Cape Fear Valley Health
System in Fayetteville, North Carolina where he also had similar responsibilities. From 1998 to 2005 he was Senior Vice President of
Medical Affairs and Chief Quality Officer of Munroe Regional Health System in Ocala, Florida where he had similar responsibilities.
During that time, Dr. Hunter earned his MBA degree. From 1995 to 1998 he served as Director of Inpatient Clinical Affairs, Inpatient
Internal Medicine, and Emergency Medicine for two healthcare organizations in Myrtle Beach, South Carolina. Prior to 1995 Dr. Hunter
was an Emergency Physician.
V. Weldon Hewitt was appointed to the board of directors on February 1, 2007. Since 1985 he has been the owner and
Chief Executive Officer of Hewitt Marketing, Inc., which provides original equipment manufacture radios and other media devices and
electronics, mobile cellular telephones, power-actuated equipment and accessories to many major vehicle manufacturers. Prior to 1985,
Mr. Hewitt founded and served as Chief Executive Officer of an original equipment manufacturer that attained as high as $20,000,000 in
annual revenues providing audio systems for new luxury cars.
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The Company’s Board of Directors named Frank Lawrence to serve as one its directors on November 3, 2007. Mr. Lawrence
was the previous majority owner of the automobile auction located in the Augusta, Georgia area that the Company acquired in July of
2007. Mr. Lawrence is the owner and operator of Bobby Jones Ford-Lincoln-Mercury in Augusta, Georgia, a dealership he has owned
since 1991, prior to which he successfully managed a number of wholesale and retail dealership operations.
Departed Directors Serving Partial Terms in 2010
Two directors served partial terms on the Company’s board of directors in 2010.
On May 16, 2007, the registrant named John David Bynum to its board of directors, and on December 31, 2008, named him
its Vice President and Chief Operating Officer with an effective date of January 1, 2009. Mr. Bynum served on the Company’s board of
directors until his resignation September 17, 2010 following disputes with the Company.
Tony Moorby joined the Company in October 2006 when he was named as a director and as President and Chief Operating
Officer until stepping down from that office at the end of December 31, 2008. After that time, Mr. Moorby continued to serve as a
director of the Company and also agreed to serve as Chairman of the Company’s new Advisory Board, although he never activated or
chaired the Advisory Board as planned. Mr. Moorby served on the Company’s board of directors until his resignation September 17,
2010 following disputes with the Company. (See Part I, Item 3 – “Legal Proceedings”)
Committees of the Board of Directors
On October 19, 2010, the board of directors appointed the following directors to serve in the capacities set forth below until
replaced by their successors:
V. Weldon Hewitt, Danny R. Gibbs and Frank Lawrence were appointed to serve as the members of the Corporation’s
Compensation Committee with V. Weldon Hewitt being named the Chairman of said Committee. The duty of the Compensation
Committee is to provide a general review of the Company's compensation and benefit plans to ensure that they meet corporate objectives
and to oversee the Company's Stock Option Plan and other benefit plans. In addition, the Compensation Committee will review the
compensation of officers of the Company and the recommendations of the Chief Executive Officer on (i) compensation of all employees
of the Company and (ii) adopting and changing major Company compensation policies and practices. Except with respect to the
administration of the Stock Option Plan, the Compensation Committee will report its recommendations to the entire Board of Directors
for approval. The Compensation Plan does not have a charter, and the committee has not reviewed the compensation of executives as it
presently reflects basic compensation in a start up environment.
Danny R. Gibbs and Steven L. Sample were appointed to serve as the members of the Corporation’s Primary Committee as
designated in the Corporation’s 2007 Stock Incentive Plan. The duties of this Primary Committee is to review, approve, and authorize
the issuance of warrants, stock, and options under the provisions of the Corporation’s 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, whether automatic or
otherwise. Mr. Gibbs is the Plan Administrator and Chairman of the Options Committee.
V. Weldon Hewitt, Danny R. Gibbs and Dr. James C. Hunter were appointed to serve as the members of the Corporation’s Audit
Committee with Danny R. Gibbs being designated as the Committee’s financial expert thereof, Mr. Gibbs being independent by virtue
of the standards set forth by the American Stock Exchange and by virtue of his experience in the supervision of a principal financial
officer and acting in that capacity in a public company. The duties of the Audit Committee will be to recommend to the entire Board
of Directors the selection of independent certified public accountants to perform an audit of the financial statements of the Company, to
review the activities and report of the independent certified public accountants, and to report the results of such review to the entire Board
of Directors. The Audit Committee will also monitor the internal controls of the Company.
Danny R. Gibbs, Dr. James C. Hunter and Steven L. Sample were appointed to serve as the members of the Corporation’s
Nominating Committee with Dr. Hunter being named the Chairman of said Committee.
Code of Ethics
Given that the Company only instituted operations in the last three years, the Company has not adopted a Code of Ethics for the
principal executive officer, principal financial officer, or principal accounting officer or controller.
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

On December 23, 2010, Messrs Gibbs, Hewitt, Hunter and Lawrence were awarded common stock Options of 45,000, 30,000,
30,000, and 20,000 respectively for their 2010 service as non-employee directors and for service on various Committees of the Board
of Directors. Those awards were reported on Forms 4 on June 28, 2011. In subsequent events, Mr. Lawrence passed away in 2012,
affecting the vesting of certain of his option privileges.
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On February 1, 2007, Mr. Moorby was awarded 500,000 shares of the Common stock of the Company. This transaction was
reported on Form 3 on June 15, 2007. Various grants of Common stock purchase options to Mr. Moorby were subsequently reported
on Forms 4. Similarly, Mr. Bynum had previously been awarded Common stock purchase options as reported on various Forms 3 and
4. Mr. Moorby and Mr. Bynum ceased to be Directors of the Company following disputes that resulted in their resignations on September
17, 2010 and subsequent litigations by and between the Company and its CEO on the one hand, and the Seller of the Chattanooga auction
assets, certain of its principals, Mr. Moorby, and Mr. Bynum on the other hand. Those litigations were settled in February of 2012.
In subsequent actions resulting from the terms of that Settlement Agreement and Release of February 28, 2012, between the
parties to those litigations, the Company cancelled 65,000 Common stock purchase options previously issued to Mr. Moorby during his
tenure as an officer and director of the Company, and Mr. Moorby was also required to return to the Company for cancellation the 500,000
shares of Common stock issued to him in 2007. In the same Settlement Agreement to those litigations, the Company also cancelled
190,000 Common stock purchase options issued to former director and officer David Bynum. Those actions were accounted for in the
2010 financial reports of the Company. Messrs. Moorby and Mr. Bynum were also required by the terms of that settlement to return
17,000 shares and 25,000 shares, respectively, of the Company’s common stock to the Company’s CEO, Mr. Sample, who had personally
gifted those shares to Messrs. Moorby and Bynum and their respectively family members. (See Part I, Item 3 – “Legal Proceedings”)
Item 11. Executive Compensation
The following table sets forth certain information concerning the compensation earned during the years ended December 31,
2010 and 2009 by the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer, for whom disclosure is required:
SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Name and Principal Position
Steven Sample, CEO(1)
Steven Sample, CEO
David Bynum, COO(2)
David Bynum, COO(2)

Fiscal Year
2010
2009
2010
2009

$
$
$

Annual Compensation
Salary
Bonus
150,000 $
150,000
85,000 $
85,000 $

-

$
$
$

Total
150,000
150,000
85,000
85,000

(1) Mr. Sample became CEO of the Company in 2006 and has continued to serve without interruption.
(2) Mr. Bynum became Chief Operating Officer of the Company effective January 1, 2009 and left the Company following his
resignation as an officer and director on September 17, 2010 after disputes with the Company. (See Part I, Item 3 – “Legal
Proceedings”).
The Company provided automobiles to Mr. Sample and to Mr. Bynum, prior to his departure from the Company, the value of
which is less than $10,000 per year for either.
Option Tables
The following table sets forth certain information concerning grants of options to purchase shares of common stock of the
Company made during the last completed fiscal year to the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table.
EXECUTIVE STOCK OPTION GRANTS
(YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010)

Name
Steven L. Sample*

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options
Exercisable
950,000

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options
Unexercisable
-

Weighted
Average
Per Share
Exercise Price
$
3.00

Expiration
Dates
12/30/2020

* Warrants issued by the Company as replacements for a similar number of warrants considered to have expired during 2010.
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The following table sets forth certain information regarding the above referenced compensation table for directors for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2010:

Name
Steven L. Sample
Danny Gibbs
James C. Hunter, MD
V. Weldon Hewitt
Frank Lawrence*
Total

Dollar Amount
Recognized for
Financial
Reporting
Purposes
in 2010
$
12,902
14,350
14,264
7,595
$
49,111

Upon a change of control, all outstanding options granted to executive officers and directors vest.
* This figure of $7,595 is net of 12,300 unvested options held by Mr. Frank J. Lawrence, a former director of the Company, but which
expired following his passing in 2012.
Director Compensation
Directors of the Company presently serve without compensation except under the Acacia Automotive, Inc. 2007 Stock Incentive
Plan adopted on February 1, 2007 for which each non-employee director of the Company is granted an option to acquire an initial 10,000
shares of common stock and 15,000 additional options are granted upon election to a full term and annually thereafter. In 2010, each
non-employee director was granted options to acquire 15,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.60 per share. In addition,
certain non-employee directors received 5,000 additional options for service on Committees of the Board of Directors and similar grants
for service in chairing or acting as the expert for the various Committees. Each of those options are similarly exercisable for $0.60 per
share, having all been granted on December 23, 2010.
Benefit Plans
As part of the reorganization proceeding of Gibbs Construction, Inc. in bankruptcy, all stock option plans and warrants existing
prior to change of name and change of control to Acacia’s management in 2006 were cancelled. At the board of directors meeting held on
February 1, 2007, the Company adopted a new stock incentive plan. Awards of options made after that date were in congruence with the
Acacia Automotive, Inc. 2007 Stock Incentive Plan. The Company provides health, disability, and life insurance plans for its employees,
and provides certain additional benefits to its CEO as are consistent for persons serving in that capacity and set forth in his employment
agreement.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
The following table sets forth as of December 31, 2010, the ownership of common stock by (i) each person known by the
Company to be the beneficial owner of more than five percent of the Company's common stock, (ii) each director of the Company, and
(iii) all directors and officers as a group. Except as otherwise indicated, each stockholder identified in the table possesses sole dispositive
voting and investment power with respect to its or his shares.
Shares Owned
Name and Address of
Beneficial Owner
Steven L. Sample (1)
Danny Gibbs (2)
Patricia Ann Arnold (3)
James C. Hunter (4)
V. Weldon Hewitt (5)

Number of
Shares
5,855,214
117,500
55,000
55,000
110,000

Percent
50.6
1.0
0.5
0.5
1.0
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%
%
%
%
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Gwendolyn Sample( 6)
Frank Lawrence (7)
All directors and officers as a group (six persons) (7)

937,000
450,000
6,642,714
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(1) Excludes 1,425,000 warrants held by Mr. Sample issued in exchange for converting all his shares of the Company’s Preferred stock
to Common stock in 2007, and not for compensation. (See Item 12 - “Change of Control”)
(2) Excludes options to purchase 115,000 shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price of $0.43 per share.
(3) Excludes options to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price of $0.01 per share.
(4) Excludes options to purchase 95,000 shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price of $0.42 per share.
(5) Excludes options to purchase 90,000 shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price of $0.44 per share.
(6) Excludes options to purchase 35,000 shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price of $0.23 per share.
(7) Excludes 42,500 warrants issued to Frank Lawrence as part of the consideration for purchasing his interest in the assets of the
Augusta Auto Auction, 75,000 warrants issued to him in conjunction with a non-compete agreement, and 12,500 warrants issued to him in
conjunction with a private placement offering that closed in June of 2007. The average execution price of said 130,000 warrants is $1.77
and they expire in July 2015. This also excludes options Mr. Lawrence held to purchase 60,000 shares of common stock at a weighted
average exercise price of $0.48 per share. Mr. Lawrence passed away in 2012 after serving as a director until September 2011, resulting
in extinguishing 12,300 unvested options, leaving him vested with 47,200 options at a weighted average exercise price of $0.45 per share.
Unless otherwise indicated, the address for each of the above named individuals is 3512 East Silver Springs Boulevard - #243,
Ocala, FL 34470.
Change of Control
On August 15, 2006, Steven L. Sample agreed to acquire control of Gibbs Construction, Inc., an inactive corporation that
had been in bankruptcy since 2000. To do so, he acquired for $50,000, 4,000,000 shares, or 46.7%, of the 8,561,000 issued and
outstanding shares of common stock of the registrant, then Gibbs Construction, Inc., from Thacker Asset Management, LLC (TAM) and
its associates. In addition Mr. Sample paid expenses totaling $138,862, such expenses including the costs associated with completing
the bankruptcy proceedings and costs such as arranging for the Company’s SEC filings to be brought current, after which the registrant
agreed to effect a one for eight reverse stock split, to issue to Mr. Sample an additional 8,117,500 shares of common stock and 500,000
shares of Preferred stock. For the assistance of Harry K. Myers, a principal of Baker #1, Ltd., the entity owning TAM, the registrant
agreed to issue to him 25,000 shares of Preferred stock and 450,000 shares of common stock.
To fulfill its obligations under this agreement, the registrant’s board of directors recommended that its stockholders amend its
corporate charter to effect a one for eight reverse stock split, to increase the number of authorized shares of common stock to 150,000,000
and to create and establish a series of Preferred stock. The distinguishing feature of the Preferred stock was that each share had 50 votes,
but if Mr. Sample or the other recipient transferred the shares to any other entity other than for estate planning purposes, the shares
automatically converted on a share for share basis to common stock and, in any event, would automatically convert to common stock
upon the death of either recipient. On May 29, 2007, Mr. Sample exchanged his Preferred shares for an equal number of Common shares
of the Company and a number of warrants to purchase Common shares.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
With respect to certain transactions regarding the restructuring of the Company’s corporate charter and transactions with Mr.
Sample, see Item 12. – “Change of Control”.
In 2006 the board of directors named Gwendolyn Sample as the Company’s assistant secretary and on February 1, 2007, granted
her an option to acquire 5,000 shares of Common stock for $0.01 per share. On November 6, 2009, the Company granted her options to
purchase 20,000 shares for $0.10 per share, and on December 23, 2010, she was awarded options to acquire 10,000 additional shares at
$0.60 per share. Ms. Sample is the spouse of Steven L. Sample. In addition, the board of directors awarded L. Palmer Sample, an IT and
MIS expert, 10,000 shares of restricted common stock for work performed in installing and maintaining the company’s computer network
system as well as creating, hosting, and maintaining the Company’s e-mail system and Internet web site. On November 2, 2007, he was
awarded 10,000 options to purchase common stock for $0.80 per share, and on November 6, 2009, was granted options to purchase 5,000
shares of common stock for $0.10 per share, and on December 23, 2010 was awarded 10,000 options to purchase Common stock at $0.60
per share. Palmer is the son of Steven L. Sample. Mr. Sample’s spouse and his son disclaim any beneficial ownership by Mr. Sample of
any shares or options they own, and they disclaim any beneficial ownership of any shares or warrants he owns.
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Mr. Sample became CEO of the Company in 2006. Since that time he has frequently borrowed funds for and on behalf of the
Company and guaranteed various loans, notes, and obligations for the Company. In addition to those actions geared to the direct benefit
of the Company, he has also borrowed to mitigate periods when payment of his salary and expenses were deferred to help the Company
conserve cash. He ultimately intends to petition the Company for reimbursement of interest expenses related to these issues. At December
31, 2010, the Company owed Mr. Sample accrued compensation of $40,491, which remained unpaid as of that date.
The Company provides automobiles for the use of Mr. Sample as well as selected management and sales employees at the
auction level.
Director Independence
We believe that, in accordance with the Company Guide of the American Stock Exchange, that Messrs. Gibbs, Hunter, Hewitt
and Lawrence are independent directors, these four individuals being a majority of our Board of Directors. As of December 31, 2010,
our Audit Committee was composed of Messrs Gibbs, Hewitt, and Hunter, all being independent. Our Compensation Committee was
composed of Messrs Hewitt, Gibbs, and Lawrence, all being independent. Our Nominating Committee was composed of Messrs Hunter,
Gibbs and Sample, Mr. Sample not being independent according to the American Stock Exchange Guide, a guide that permits smaller
reporting companies, as we are, to have a Nominating Committee containing one director that is not independent.
Conflicts of Interest.
The Company is or may be subject to various conflicts of interest. The Company does not have a fully-independent management
staff, and will be relying on its management for the day-to-day management and operations of the Company and the Company’s
assets. As such, certain employees may have conflicts of interest in allocating time, services and functions to the Company in deference
to their other activities.
The Company’s Secretary, a non-salaried position, is employed full-time in Nashville, Tennessee in a diverse business. The
Company does not make heavy demands on its Secretary, who is not expected to give substantial time to the affairs of the Company.
The Company has no other full-time corporate managerial staff except for its President and CEO, who devotes the majority of
his business time and efforts to the management and direction of the Company. As such, there is not now, nor has there previously been
considered to be, any material conflict of interest on his part.
The President and CEO of the Company served as a director of the Company as well as an officer and director of the Company’s
subsidiary corporations. Service in those capacities with the subsidiaries is not considered to constitute a conflict of interest on the part of
employees or directors. The Company’s President and CEO continues to serve in those capacities, and no conflict of interest is perceived.
Investment in the Company will not carry with it the right to invest in any other property or venture of the President or other
officers, employees, and directors of the Company.
Item 14. Principle Accountant Fees and Services
The following is a summary of the aggregate fees billed to us for fiscal 2009 by Killman, Murrell & Company, P.C.:
Audit Fees
Fees for audit services totaled approximately $86,259 in 2010 and $52,880 in 2009, including fees for professional services for
the audit of our annual financial statements and for the reviews of the financial statements included in each of our quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q or Form 8-K.
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Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) Financial Statements
The following financial statements are included herewith:
Page
F-1
F-2
F-3
F-4
F-5
F-6 to F-20

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(b) Reports on Form 8-K
(c) Exhibits

31.1 Certification Pursuant To 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 As Adopted Pursuant To Section 302 Of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act Of 2002
32.1 Certification Pursuant To 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 As Adopted Pursuant To Section 906 Of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act Of 2002
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KWCO, PC
Certified Public Accountants
1931 E. 37th Street, Suite 7
Odessa, Texas 79762
(432) 363-0067
Fax (432) 363-0376

2626 Royal Circle
Kingwood, Texas 77339
(281) 359-7224
Fax (281) 359-7112

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Acacia Diversified Holdings, Inc.
(Formerly Acacia Automotive, Inc.)
Ocala, Florida
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Acacia Diversified Holdings, Inc. (Formerly Acacia Automotive, Inc.)
as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the
years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal
control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control over consolidated financial reporting. Accordingly we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of Acacia Diversified Holdings, Inc. as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the consolidated results of its operations and its
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern. As discussed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has suffered recurring losses from operations
and its limited capital resources raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard to
these matters are described in Note 15. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the
outcome of this uncertainty.
/s/ KWCO, PC
KWCO, PC
(Formerly Killman, Murrell & Company, PC)
Odessa, Texas
January 10, 2013
F-1
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ACACIA DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS, INC.
(FORMERLY ACACIA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
2010

2009

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Certificate of deposit (restricted)
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible accounts of $32,000 in 2010
Deposits and prepaid expenses
Assets of discontinued operations
Total Current Assets
Property and Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation
of $146,389 and $92,005 in 2010 and 2009, respectively

$

Other assets
Goodwill
Customer list and Non-Compete Agreement, net of amortization
of $397,384 and $359,884 in 2010 and 2009, respectively
Total Other Assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Cash overdraft
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Line of credit
Shareholder payable
Capital lease obligations, current portion
Liabilities of discontinued operations

163,475

185,487

427,929

427,929

243,750
671,679

281,250
709,179
$

1,542,710

$

8,964
422,276
95,027
263,000
99,074
21,647
150,000

$

20,400
318,814
354,622
265,000
31,362
240,461

$

1,059,988

1,230,659

37,415

47,320

1,097,403

1,277,979

11,562
11,442,518
(11,241,940)
212,140
1,309,543 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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21,035
150,041
208,546
18,006
250,416
648,044

1,309,543

Total liabilities

F-2

$

$

Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Capital lease obligations, less current portion

Stockholders’ equity
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 150,000,000 shares authorized;
11,562,524 and 12,082,524 shares issues and outstanding, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Retained deficit
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities & stockholders’ equity

11,113
150,006
290,248
23,022
474,389

12,082
11,277,668
(11,025,019)
264,731
1,542,710
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ACACIA DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS, INC.
(FORMERLY ACACIA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
2010
Revenues
Buyers fees
Sellers fees
Other revenue

$

782,105
546,157
428,725

Total revenues
Costs and expenses
Cost of fees earned
Employee compensation
General and administrative
(Gain) loss on sale of assets
Depreciation and amortization

1,756,987

Total costs and expenses

2,195,697

2009
$

414,943
884,189
803,148
(2,935)
96,352

596,978
525,665
268,563
1,391,206
188,196
647,609
643,483
2,638
154,298
1,636,224

Operating income (loss) before other income (expense) and income taxes

(438,710)

(245,018)

Other income (expense)
Interest income
Other income
Interest expense
Settlement of indebtedness and lawsuits
Total other income (expense)
Income (loss) before income taxes
Income taxes
Income (loss) from continuing operations

137
6,390
(15,241)
168,687
159,973
(278,737)
(278,737)

1,817
10,261
(22,078)
(10,000)
(255,018)
(255,018)

Gain (Loss) on discontinued operations
(Loss) on discontinued operations
Gain on disposition of discontinued operations
Net gain (loss) from discontinued operations
Net income (loss)

(398,564)
460,380
61,816
(216,921)

(19,816)
(19,816)
(274,834)

Basic and diluted loss per share
Loss from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations, net
Net income (loss)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

$

(0.02) $
(0.02)
11,562,524

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ACACIA DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS, INC.
(FORMERLY ACACIA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Balance December 31, 2008
Stock issued for services
Stock options issued for compensation
Acquisition of Chattanooga
Net Loss
Balance December 31, 2009
Stock options and stock warrants
issued for compensation
Lawsuit settlement
Net Loss
Balance December 31, 2010

Common Stock
Shares
Par Value
12,062,524 $
12,062

Additional
Paid-in
Capital
$
11,095,181

Retained
Deficit
$ (10,750,185) $

20,000
-

20
-

2,780
64,707
115,000

-

-

-

(274,834)

12,082,524

12,082

11,277,668

(11,025,019)

(520,000)
11,562,524

(520)
$

11,562

-

185,130
(20,280)
$

11,442,518

$
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2,800
64,707
115,000
(274,834)
264,731

(216,921)

185,130
(20,800)
(216,921)

(11,241,940) $

212,140

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
F-4

Total
357,058

Table of Contents

ACACIA DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS, INC.
(FORMERLY ACACIA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
2010
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss)
Less discontinued (income) loss from operations, net of income taxes
Net income (loss) before discontinued operations
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities
Settlement of indebtedness and lawsuits
Depreciation and amortization
Common stock issued for services
Stock options and stock warrants issued for services
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Certificate of deposit (restricted)
Accounts receivable
Deposits and prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Shareholder payable
Cash provided by (used in) continuing activities
Cash provided by (used in) discontinuing activities
Net cash flow provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash flows provided by (used from) investing activities
Proceeds from sale of assets
Purchase of equipment/leasehold improvements
Cash provided by (used in) continuing activities
Cash provided by (used in) discontinuing activities
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash overdrafts
Borrowings line of credit and revolver (net)
Capital lease payments
Cash provided by (used in) continuing activities
Cash provided by (used in) discontinuing activities
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid during period for:
Interest
Income tax

$

(216,921) $
(61,816)
(278,737)

154,298
2,800
64,707
2,638

35
(81,702)
(5,016)
103,463
(111,709)
99,074
(164,732)
145,308
(19,424)

7,214
27,979
(14,525)
41,253
(49,752)
(18,406)
(73,582)
(91,988)

13,095
(21,888)
(8,793)
90,273
81,480

24,182
(19,366)
4,816
(5,000)
(184)

15,241
-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(274,834)
19,816
(255,018)

(168,687)
96,352
185,130
(2,935)

(11,436)
(2,000)
(44,732)
(58,168)
(13,810)
(71,978
)
(9,922)
21,035
$
11,113 $

$
$
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2009

$
$

(22,493)
(10,000)
(23,696)
(56,189)
163,810
107,621
15,449
5,586
21,035

22,078
-
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ACACIA DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS, INC.
(FORMERLY ACACIA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
NOTE 1 - THE COMPANY
Acacia Diversified Holdings, Inc., formerly known as Acacia Automotive, Inc., (“Acacia” or the “Company”) is engaged in acquiring
and operating auctions that sell automobiles, trucks, equipment, boats, motor homes, RVs, and other related vehicles. Currently, Acacia
owns one auction in North Augusta, South Carolina.
In June of 2007 the Company raised capital through a private placement offering that enabled it to acquire for Common stock in July of
that same year the assets and business of Augusta Auto Auction, Inc, in North Augusta, South Carolina. This wholly-owned subsidiary,
doing business as Acacia Augusta Vehicle Auction, Inc., became the first operations of Acacia Automotive, Inc.
In December of 2009, the Company also acquired the assets and business of Chattanooga Auto Auction Limited Liability Company
in Chattanooga, Tennessee. This wholly-owned subsidiary, doing business as Acacia Chattanooga Vehicle Auction, Inc., became the
second operations of Acacia Automotive, Inc., and was subsequently discontinued on August 31, 2010.
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PRESENTATION - The Company has elected to prepare its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States (GAAP) with December 31, as its year-end. The consolidated financial statements and notes
are representations of the Company’s management who are responsible for their integrity and objectivity.
CONSOLIDATION - The Company owns 100% of the Common stock of Acacia Augusta Vehicle Auction, Inc. and Acacia Chattanooga
Vehicle Auction, Inc. The Company discontinued operations in Chattanooga effective with August 31, 2010, and has accounted for
these as discontinued operations in its reports and financial information beginning with the 10-Q Quarterly Report for the period ended
9-30-2010. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and both its vehicle auctions, accounting for the
discontinued operations in Chattanooga. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.
USE OF ESTIMATES - Preparing the Company’s financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions about current, and for some estimates, future economic
and market conditions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities about current, and for some estimates, future economic and
market conditions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - The Company considers all short-term investments purchased with a maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents.
CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT (RESTRICTED) – The Company holds a certificate of deposit set to mature at July 26, 2011, that is
pledged as a partial compensating balance for the line of credit of Augusta Auto Auction. The certificate renewed April 26, 2010, for
nine months.
F-6
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ACACIA DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS, INC.
(FORMERLY ACACIA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - Trade receivables include the unremitted purchase price of vehicles purchased by third parties at the
auctions, fees to be collected from those buyers and amounts for services provided by the Company related to certain consigned vehicles
in our possession. These amounts due with respect to the consigned vehicles are generally deducted in settlement from the sales proceeds
upon the eventual auction or other disposition of the related vehicles. Due to the nature of the Company's business, substantially all trade
and finance receivables are due from vehicle dealers, salvage buyers and sellers, institutional, commercial and fleet sellers, governmental
agencies, and insurance companies. The Company has possession of vehicles or vehicle titles collateralizing a significant portion of the
trade and finance receivables. The Company’s receivables are recorded when billed, advanced, or accrued and represent claims against
third parties that will be settled in cash. The carrying value of the Company’s receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts,
represents their estimated net realizable value. The Company estimates its allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical collection
trends, the age of the outstanding receivables and existing economic conditions. The allowances for doubtful accounts and credit losses
are based on management’s evaluation of the receivables portfolio under current conditions, the volume of the portfolio, overall portfolio
credit quality, review of specific collection issues and such other factors which in management’s judgment deserve recognition in
estimating losses. The changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 are shown below:
2010
Balance at beginning of year
Provision for losses
Write-off accounts
Balance at end of year

$

2009

- $
(32,000)
(32,000) $

$

(25,685)
25,685
-

EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES – Equipment and vehicles are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Major renewals and
improvements are capitalized, while minor replacements, maintenance and repairs are charged to current operations. Depreciation is
computed by applying the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives, which are generally three to fifteen years. Depreciation
expense for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 totaled $146,389 and $92,005, respectively.
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - The Company maintains cash
balances at financial institutions, which at times exceed federally insured amounts. The Company has not experienced any material losses
in such accounts.
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, deposits, prepaid expenses, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments. Accounts payable include amounts due sellers from
the proceeds of the sale of their consigned vehicles less any fees, to other vendors, and any outstanding checks to sellers and vendors.
FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES – In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 “Fair Value Measurements”. The objective of SFAS
157 (ASC 820) is to increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements and to expand disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 (ASC 820) defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted
accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 (ASC 820) applies under other accounting
pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements and does not require any new fair value measurements.
F-7
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ACACIA DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS, INC.
(FORMERLY ACACIA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)
FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES - (Continued)
The Company measures it options and warrants at fair value in accordance with SFAS 157 (ASC 820). SFAS 157 (ASC 820) specifies a
valuation hierarchy based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect
market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect the Company’s own assumptions. These two types of
inputs have created the following fair value hierarchy:
Level 1 – Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets;
Level 2 – Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that
are not active, and model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable in active
markets; and
Level 3 – Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or significant value drivers are
unobservable.
This hierarchy requires the Company to minimize the use of unobservable inputs and to use observable market data, if available, when
estimating fair value. The fair value of the options at December 31, 2010 and 2009, was as follows:
Quoted Prices
In Active
Markets for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)
Year Ended December 31, 2010
2010 Stock Warrants
2010 Stock Options
Year Ended December 31, 2009
Stock Issued for Services
Purchase of Chattanooga Auto Auction
2009 Stock Options

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

Total

$
$

-

$
$

122,734
62,396

$
$

-

$
$

122,734
62,396

$
$
$

-

$
$
$

2,800
64,707

$
$
$

120,000
-

$
$
$

2,800
120,000
64,707

Options were valued using the Black-Scholes model.
RECLASSIFICATIONS – Certain reclassifications have been made to previously reported amounts, so that the prior year’s presentation
is comparative with the current year’s presentation.
COMPENSATED ABSENCES - The Company has not accrued a liability in accordance with FAS 43 (ASC 710), as the amount of the
liability cannot be reasonably estimated at December 31, 2010.
LOSS PER COMMON SHARE - Basic and diluted net loss per share is calculated by dividing net loss by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the period, and does not include the impact of any potentially dilutive common stock
equivalents. Potential common shares are not included in the computation of loss per share, as their effect is antidilutive.
In 2010, the retirement of 520,000 shares in connection with a lawsuit settlement as of February 28, 2012 was considered to be effective
as of January 1, 2010.
F-8
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ACACIA DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS, INC.
(FORMERLY ACACIA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)
REVENUE RECOGNITION – Revenues and the related costs are recognized when the services are performed. Auction fees from sellers
and buyers are recognized upon the sale of the vehicle through the auction process. Most of the vehicles that are sold at auction are
consigned to the Company by the seller and held at the Company's facilities. The Company does not take title to these consigned vehicles
and recognizes revenue when a service is performed as requested by the owner of the vehicle. The Company does not record the gross
selling price of the consigned vehicles sold at auction as revenue. Instead, the Company records only its auction fees as revenue because
it does not take title to the consigned vehicles, has no influence on the vehicle auction selling price agreed to by the seller and buyer at
the auction and the fees that the Company receives for its services are generally based on fixed amounts according to locally-published
rate schedules. Revenues from reconditioning, logistics, vehicle inspection and certification, titling, and salvage recovery services are
generally recognized when the services are performed.
INCOME TAXES - The Company files federal, state and foreign income tax returns in accordance with the applicable rules of each
jurisdiction. We account for income taxes under the asset and liability method in accordance with ASC 740, Income Taxes. The provision
for income taxes includes federal, state and local income taxes currently payable, as well as deferred taxes. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts
of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable amounts in years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. If it is more
likely than not that some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized, a valuation allowance is recognized. In accordance with
ASC 740, we recognize the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely than not of being sustained. Recognized
income tax positions are measured at the largest amount that is greater than 50% likely of being realized. Changes in recognition or
measurement are reflected in the period in which the change in judgment occurs. The Company currently has substantial net operating
loss carryforwards. The Company has recorded a valuation allowance equal to the net deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty of the
ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets.
ADVERTISING COSTS - Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended December 31, 2010 and
2009 amounted to $71,270 and $31,784, respectively.
CONTINGENCIES - Certain conditions may exist as of the date the financial statements are issued, which may result in a loss to the
Company but which will only be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur. The Company’s management and
its legal counsel assess such contingent liabilities, and such assessment inherently involves an exercise of judgment. In assessing loss
contingencies related to legal proceedings that are pending against the Company or unasserted claims that may result in such proceedings,
the Company’s legal counsel evaluates the perceived merits of any legal proceedings or unasserted claims as well as the perceived merits
of the amount of relief sought or expected to be sought therein.
If the assessment of a contingency indicates that it is possible that a material loss has been incurred and the amount of the liability
can be estimated, the estimated liability would be accrued in the Company’s financial statements. If the assessment indicates that a
potentially material loss contingency is not probable but is reasonably possible, or is probable but cannot be estimated, then the nature of
the contingent liability, together with an estimate of range of possible loss if determinable and material, would be disclosed.
The Company stores a significant number of automobiles, trucks, boats and recreational vehicles owned by various customers and
consigned to the Company to be auctioned. The Company is contingently liable for each consigned units until the eventual sale or other
disposition; however, the Company is generally not liable for damage related to severe weather conditions, natural disasters or other
factors outside of the Company’s control. Loss is possible; however, at this time management cannot estimate a range of loss that could
occur. Individual stop loss and aggregate insurance coverage is maintained on the consigned units. These vehicles are consigned to the
Company and are not included in the consolidated balance sheets.
In the normal course of business, the Company also enters into various other guarantees and indemnities in its relationships with suppliers,
service providers, customers and others. These guarantees and indemnifications do not materially impact the Company’s financial
condition or results of operations, but indemnifications associated with the Company’s actions generally have no dollar limitations and
currently cannot be quantified.
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ACACIA DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS, INC.
(FORMERLY ACACIA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)
STOCK BASED COMPENSATION - The Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R
"Share-Based Payment" ("SFAS No. 123(R)") to account for stock-based compensation under ASC 718 and ASC 605, CompensationStock Compensation. The Codification requires that all stock-based compensation be recognized as expense in the financial statements
and that such cost be measured at the fair value of the award at the grant date. An additional requirement of ASC 718 is that
estimated forfeitures be considered in determining compensation expense. Estimating forfeitures did not have a material impact on the
determination of compensation expense in 2010 and 2009. ASC 718 requires cash flows resulting from tax deductions from the exercise
of stock options in excess of recognized compensation cost (excess tax benefits) to be classified as financing cash flows. This requirement
had no impact on our consolidated statement of cash flows in 2010 and 2009, as no options were exercised. During the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, the Company issued no stock awards to employees.
On December 23, 2010, the Company issued stock options to purchase 145,000 shares of the Company’s common stock for $.60, with a
life of ten (10) years. The aggregate value of these stock options was $77,700. These options generally vest over a four-year period.
On November 6, 2009, the Company issued stock options to purchase 195,000 shares of the Company’s common stock for $.10, with a
life of ten (10) years in connection with the Board of Directors authorization. The aggregate value of these stock options was $17,550.
These options can be exercised upon the discretion of the option holder. These options generally vest over a four-year period.
The Black-Sholes model assumptions were:
2010
Estimated fair value
Expected life (years)
Risk free interest rate
Volatility
Dividend yield

$

2009
0.55 $
4.3
1.07%
168%
-

0.09
5.0
2.19%
148%
-

Risk-free interest rate – This is the yield on U.S. Treasury Securities posted at the date of grant (or date of modification) having a term
equal to the expected life of the option. An increase in the risk-free interest rate will increase compensation expense.
Expected life—years – This is the period of time over which the options granted are expected to remain outstanding. Options granted by
the Company had a maximum term of ten years. An increase in the expected life will increase compensation expense.
Expected volatility – Actual changes in the market value of stock are used to calculate the volatility assumption. An increase in the
expected volatility will increase compensation expense.
Dividend yield – This is the annual rate of dividends per share over the exercise price of the option. An increase in the dividend yield will
decrease compensation expense. The Company does not currently pay dividends and has no immediate plans to do so in the near future.
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ACACIA DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS, INC.
(FORMERLY ACACIA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)
STOCK BASED COMPENSATION - (Continued)
The fair values of options issued are being amortized over the respective vesting periods (primarily four years). The amortized cost
recognized for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 were $62,396 and $64,407, respectively. Future amortization of the fair
value of options is as follows:
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015

$

$

Amount
62,396
48,053
24,259
1,700
198,804
Stock Options
2010

Outstanding at beginning of the year
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited or cancelled
Outstanding at end of year
Exercisable

Weighted
Number of
Average
Shares
Exercise Price
590,000 $
0.39
145,000
0.60
(255,000)
(0.43)
480,000
0.43
371,250 $
0.38

2009
Number of
Shares
395,000
195,000
590,000
55,000

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
$
0.51
0.10
0.39
$
0.59

Stock Warrants
The exercisable outstanding stock purchase warrants for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 were 2,206,250 and 1,206,250
with a weighted average exercise price of $1.89 and $0.96, respectively. The following summarizes the warrant activity.
2010

Outstanding at beginning of the year
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited or cancelled
Outstanding at end of year
Exercisable

Number of
Shares
1,206,250
1,000,000
2,206,250
2,206,250

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
$
0.96
3.00
1.89
$
1.89
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2009
Number of
Shares
1,206,250
1,206,250
1,206,250

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
$
0.96
0.96
$
0.96
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ACACIA DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS, INC.
(FORMERLY ACACIA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)
IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS AND GOODWILL - Goodwill represents the excess of cost over fair value of identifiable
net assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually in the second quarter, or more frequently as impairment
indicators arise. The goodwill impairment test is a two-step test. Under the first step, the fair value of each reporting unit is compared
with its carrying value (including goodwill). If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, an indication of goodwill
impairment exists for the reporting unit and we must perform step two of the impairment test (measurement). Under step two, an
impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill over the implied fair value of that
goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit in a manner similar to a
purchase price allocation, in accordance with ASC 805, Business Combinations. The residual fair value after this allocation is the implied
fair value of the reporting unit goodwill. Fair value of the reporting unit is determined using a discounted cash flow analysis. If the fair
value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, step two does not need to be performed. These events may include changes in the
manner in which we intend to use an asset or a decision to sell an asset. The Company’s management believes that no impairment is
deemed necessary at December 31, 2010.
RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS – The Company has implemented all new accounting pronouncements that are in
effect and that may impact its financial statements and does not believe that there are any other new accounting pronouncements that
have been issued that might have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations.
NOTE 3 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company grants 10,000 Common Share Purchase Options to each of its outside directors upon their appointment in accordance to the
Stock Incentive Plan for 2007. Additionally, 15,000 Common Share Purchase Options are granted to each eligible director for each year
of elected annual service to the Company. This resulted in the issuance of 125,000 options to eligible non-employee directors in 2010.
In other transactions, the Company issued 20,000 Common Stock Purchase Options to two employees for services to the Company. The
aggregate value of the 145,000 options was $77,700 amortized over a four year period.
In 2009, options to purchase 105,000 shares of common stock were issued to eligible non-employee directors. Additionally, 80,000
options were issued to employees and another 10,000 were issued for services to non-employees, with an aggregate value of $17,550. In
2008, options to purchase 90,000 shares of common stock were issued to eligible directors and 135,000 options were issued to employees
for services, and in addition 15,000 to a non-employee for services, with an aggregate value of $112,763.
NOTE 4 - EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES
Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method at rates intended to depreciate the costs of assets over their estimated useful lives. Upon retirement or sale of property and
equipment, the cost of the disposed assets and related accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or
loss is credited or charged to selling, general and administrative expenses. Expenditures for normal repairs and maintenance are charged
to expense as incurred.
Additions and expenditures for improving or rebuilding existing assets that extend the useful life are capitalized. Leasehold improvements
made either at the inception of the lease or during the lease term are amortized over the shorter of their economic lives or the lease term
including any renewals that are reasonably assured. Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2010 and 2009:

Leasehold improvements
Vehicles
Computer equipment
Furniture & fixtures
Other equipment & software
Total property and equipment

$

2010
45,769
55,181
79,180
13,486
116,247
309,863

$

2009
43,351
69,808
54,068
6,842
103,423
277,492
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Less accumulated depreciation
Net property and equipment

$

(146,389)
163,475 $
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ACACIA DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS, INC.
(FORMERLY ACACIA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
NOTE 4 - EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES - (Continued)
Equipment and vehicles acquired by capitalized leases and included in the above summary are set forth as follows at December 31, 2010
and 2009:

Cost
Accumulated Depreciation

$
$

2010
123,061 $
(76,045)
47,016 $

2009
112,576
(30,979)
81,597

NOTE 5 - INCOME TAXES
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009 the Company had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $11,857,000 and $11,825,000
respectively, which will expire beginning in 2017. A valuation allowance has been provided for the deferred tax asset as it is uncertain
whether the Company will have future taxable income. A reconciliation of the benefit for income taxes with amounts determined by
applying the statutory federal income rate of (34%) to the loss before income taxes is as follows:

Net Operating Loss
Benefit for income taxes computed using the
statutory rate of 34%
Non-deductible expense
Change in valuation allowance
Provision for income taxes

$

2010
(216,921) $

2009
(274,834)

$

73,753
(71,062)
(2,691)
- $

93,444
(25,424)
(68,020)
-

Significant components of the Company's deferred tax liabilities and assets at December 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

Tax operating loss carryforwards
Intangible assets
Total deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation
Goodwill
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets
Valuation allowance

$

$

2010
4,031,661
84,248
4,115,909

$

(12,864)
(33,950)
(46,814)
4,069,095
(4,069,095)
- $

2009
4,020,660
86,030
4,106,690
(16,036)
(24,250)
(40,286)
4,066,404
(4,066,404)
-
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ACACIA DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS, INC.
(FORMERLY ACACIA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
NOTE 6 - STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Warrants
In 2007 the Company issued 1,500,000 warrants to an officer and a related party, of which 500,000 were exercisable immediately with
an exercise price of $1.00, and the remaining 1,000,000 warrants were exercisable upon the attainment of specific performance levels
by the Company. As of January 1, 2008, based upon ambiguous language, the specific performance levels were not considered to have
been achieved, therefore none of the 1,000,000 performance-based warrants vested and they were considered to have expired. 1,000,000
warrants were issued in 2010 to replace the expired warrants at an average exercise price of $3.00, with an aggregated estimated fair value
of $122,734 ($0.12 per warrant). The Black-Sholes model was used to compute the estimated fair value using the following assumptions;
expected life 3 years, risk-free interest rate 1.07%, dividend yield none, and volatility 168%.
Common Stock
On December 23, 2009, 20,000 shares of Common stock were issued to two affiliates of Chattanooga Auto Auction Limited Liability
Company, the entity from which the Company acquired the assets of the Chattanooga Auction. The stock was valued at $2,800 based
upon the historic weighted average price per share for the most recent equivalent trading volume. The Company subsequently engaged
in litigations against those individuals, who also claimed to have not received the shares. In the final settlement of the litigations, those
20,000 shares were cancelled and returned to the Company’s treasury in April of 2012. As a further part of the settlement to that
litigation, Tony Moorby, an ex officer and director of the Company, was required to return to the Company for cancellation the 500,000
shares of common stock he was awarded in 2007 relative to his hiring. The cumulative effect of these transactions was that 520,000
shares of the Company’s common stock were cancelled and returned to its treasury in 2012 as a result of the litigation settlement. As
a further part of the litigation settlement, the Company cancelled 65,000 Common Stock Purchase Options previously issued to Mr.
Moorby., and 190,000 Common Stock Purchase Options previously issued to David Bynum, also a former officer and director of the
Company.
NOTE 7 - CUSTOMER LIST AND NON-COMPETE AGREEMENT
In connection with the July 10, 2007 acquisition of the Augusta Auto Auction, the Company recognized as intangible asset $266,134
non-compete agreement and $375,000 customer list. The non-compete agreement was amortized over a twenty-four month period and
the customer list is being amortized over ten years. The aggregate amortization for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 was
$37,500 and $104,034, respectively. At December 31, 2010 the balance sheet assets reflects the following:
Non-Compete
$
266,134

Asset Cost
Accumulated Amortization

$
$

Customer List
$
375,000

(266,134) $
- $

$

(131,250) $
243,750 $

Total
641,134
(397,384)
243,750

Future estimated amortization expense at the Augusta operation is:
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
Thereafter

$

$

37,500
37,500
37,500
37,500
37,500
56,250
243,750
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ACACIA DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS, INC.
(FORMERLY ACACIA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
NOTE 8 - ASSET ACQUISITION
On December 26, 2009, Acacia Automotive, Inc. (the “Buyer”) purchased certain assets and liabilities of Chattanooga Auto Auction
Limited Liability Company (“Seller”) and the business associated therewith for a cash payment of $5,000 in order to further expand the
Company's operations in the automotive auction industry. Acacia Chattanooga Vehicle Auction, Inc., a subsidiary of Acacia Automotive,
Inc., operated this auto auction from a leased facility located in Chattanooga, Tennessee. Effective August 31, 2010, the Company
discontinued operations at the Chattanooga auction location.
The following table summarizes the amounts assigned to assets acquired and the liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition of the
Chattanooga Auction:
Fair value of equipment

$

120,000

Cash paid
Paid-in capital

$

(5,000)
115,000

The Company did not acquire any goodwill or other intangible assets in the purchase.
NOTE 9 - DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Under ASC Topic 360-10-35, Property, Plant and Equipment – Subsequent Measurement (formerly referred to as SFAS No. 144,
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets), we classify assets to be disposed of by our management or Board of
Directors. Cash flows from our discontinued business are reflected as discontinued operating, investing, or financing activities in our
statement of cash flows. We had no assets of discontinued operations and $150,000 of discontinued operations as of December 31, 2010.
The Company discontinued operations at its Chattanooga location effective August 31, 2010, accounting for those as discontinued
operations beginning with its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2010. The disputes with the Company
and the seller of the Chattanooga business and assets resulted in litigations beginning in September of 2010.
On February 28, 2012, the Company settled its litigations with the seller of the Chattanooga Auto Auction business and assets, including
the litigations against her associates and former directors of the Company who acted in concert with those parties. The settlement resulted
in a full release of liabilities of all the parties against one another.
F-15
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ACACIA DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS, INC.
(FORMERLY ACACIA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
NOTE 9 - DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - (Continued)
The following is a summary of financial information related to our discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2010 and
2009.

Net Revenue
Costs and expenses
Costs of fees earned
Employee compensation
General and administrative
(Gain) or loss on sale of assets
Depreciation and amortization
Total costs and expenses
Operating loss
Other income (expense), net
Loss before income taxes
Loss on discontinued operations, net of taxes
Gain on disposition of discontinued operations, net of taxes
Total gain (loss) on discontinued operations, net of taxes

$

Year Ended December 31,
2010
2009
2,602,352 $
20,219

$

881,477
1,054,958
1,036,969
3,215
26,512
3,003,131
(400,779)
2,215
(398,564)
(398,564)
460,380
61,816 $

8,338
23,606
8,091
40,035
(19,816)
(19,816)
(19,816)
(19,816)

December 31,
2010
2009
Current assets
Accounts receivable
Prepaids
Property and equipment, net
Total assets
Current liabilities
Cash overdraft
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Notes payable
Total liabilities

$

-

$

150,000
150,000

$

107,276
23,140
120,000
250,416

$

71,786
76,651
92,024
240,461

The gain on disposition of discontinued operations was determined as follows as of August 31, 2010:
Liabilities
Assets
Gain on disposition

$
$

823,960
(363,580)
460,380

The Company lost control of the Chattanooga Auto Auction business on August 31, 2010, and the amounts reflected above represent the
assets and liabilities of the Chattanooga Auto Auction as of that date.
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ACACIA DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS, INC.
(FORMERLY ACACIA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
NOTE 10 - ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities consist of the following at December 31, 2010 and 2009:

Accrued payroll and benefits
Accrued expenses - other

$
$

2010
95,027
95,027

$
$

2009
309,622
45,000
354,622

NOTE 11 - NOTES PAYABLE AND LINES OF CREDIT
The Company entered into a loan agreement with Wachovia Bank, NA to provide a credit facility for up to $300,000. As of December
31, 2010 and 2009, the balance owed the bank was $263,000 and $265,000, respectively. The loan interest rate is bank prime plus 1.5%
per annum. The LOC is partially collateralized by a certificate of deposit that matured July 26, 2010, automatically renewing for nine
months. The certificate of deposit amount was $150,006 and $150,041 on December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The loan matured
on November 30, 2010, and was extended and continued in effect until it was paid in full on January 31, 2011.
On December 26, 2009, the Company's Chattanooga Auto Auction entered into a revolving loan agreement with the seller of the
Chattanooga business and assets to provide a credit facility for up to $2,000,000. The loan interest rate is the greater of 6% per annum or
Wall Street Journal Libor plus 500 basis points. As of December 31, 2009, $92,024 was owed on that loan. The loan was guaranteed by
the Company and was personally guaranteed by its CEO, and is collateralized by the stock of Acacia Chattanooga Vehicle Auction, Inc.
The maturity date of this loan was December 28, 2012. In subsequent actions, the Company entered into litigation with the seller of the
Chattanooga business and assets and the lender to the Chattanooga line of credit, ultimately settling the dispute in February of 2012 in an
agreement that terminated all financial obligations of the Company under the Chattanooga line of credit.
NOTE 12 - NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
During 2009, non-cash investing and financing activities included common stock issued for services for $2,800, vehicle and equipment
financing for $115,000, and capital equipment leases amounting to $70,859. During 2010, non-cash investing and financing activities
included $25,112 capital leases and $520 representing the par value of 520,000 shares of the Company’s common stock returned for
cancellation under the terms of the Settlement Agreement and Release of February 28, 2012 which ended the Company’s litigations, those
cancellations being accounted for as of January 1, 2010. The following table further displays the Company’s 2010 and 2009 non-cash
investing and financing activities:
2010
Common stock
Additional paid-in capital
Accounts payable
Leased equipment
Capital lease obligations

$

$

2009

(520) $
(20,280)
20,800
(25,112)
25,112
- $
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2,780
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-
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ACACIA DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS, INC.
(FORMERLY ACACIA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
NOTE 13 - OPERATING LEASES
The Company leases its auction facility on a month-to-month basis for its Augusta Auto Auction. That rent is $2,975 per month. Augusta
Auto Auction also rents an indoor storage facility and additional parking across the street from the auction at the rate of $1,283 per month.
Annual rent expense at the Augusta Auction operation amounted to $53,383 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.
The Company leased its Chattanooga Auto Auction facility on a long-term lease paid monthly until discontinuing operations there at the
end of August 2010. However, all the Company’s obligations to that lease ceased in conjunction with discontinuing operations at that
auction effective August 31, 2010, and in concert with the settlement of disputes in litigation.
NOTE 14 - CAPITAL LEASES
The following are capital leases outstanding as of December 31, 2010 and 2009:
2010
VAR Resources, Inc. – monthly payments of $269, including interest of 13.63% secured by
computer equipment, matures August 31, 2013

$

2009
8,608

$

12,127

IBM Credit, Inc. – Monthly payments of $ 84, including interest at 15.24% secured by computer
equipment, matures January 31, 2012

924

2,106

Marple Fleet Leasing – Monthly payments of $1,065 and $1,420 in 2010 and 2009, respectively,
including interest of 10.21%, secured by four and three vehicles each with a residual value of $
2925, matures October 1, 2012

42,855

59,980

VAR Resources, Inc – Monthly payments of $841, including interest at 13.85% secured by
computer equipment, matures August 31, 2013

26,912

-

VAR Resources, Inc – Monthly payments of $591, including interest at 22.72% secured by
computer equipment, matured October 31, 2010

-

2,953

CIT Technology Financing Services, Inc. – Monthly payments of $436, including interest of
19.09% secured by computer equipment, matured November 30, 2010

-

5,097

CIT Technology Financing Services, Inc. – Monthly payments of $716, including interest at
19.99% secured by computer equipment, matured November 14, 2010

-

8,593

IBM Credit, Inc. – Monthly payments of $164, including interest at 8.01% secured by computer
equipment, matured December 31, 2010

-

1,967

Total payments under capital lease
Less amounts applicable to interest
Less current portion
$
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79,299
(20,237)
59,062
(21,647)
37,415

$

92,823
(14,141)
78,682
(31,362)
47,320
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ACACIA DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS, INC.
(FORMERLY ACACIA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
NOTE 14 - CAPITAL LEASES - (Continued)
Future minimum lease payments under capital leases are:
2011
2012
2013

$

31,377
37,890
10,032

$

79,299

NOTE 15 - GOING CONCERN
As of December 31, 2010, the Company has limited disposable cash and its revenues are not sufficient to and cannot be projected to cover
operating expenses and expansion by the Company. These factors raise substantial doubt as to the ability of the Company to continue as
a going concern. Management’s plans include attempting to find additional operational auto auctions to buy and raising funds from the
public through a stock offering. Management intends to make every effort to identify and develop sources of funds. There is no assurance
that Management’s plans will be successful.
NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On July 31, 2012, the Company sold the assets and related business of its Acacia Augusta Vehicle Auction, Inc. operations for $1,450,000,
recognizing a gain on the sale of approximately $784,000. The Company, upon approval of the majority of the shareholders, changed its
name from Acacia Automotive, Inc. to Acacia Diversified Holdings, Inc. That name change was effected on October 18, 2012.
In September of 2010, disputes arose between the Company and the sellers of the Chattanooga Auto Auction. On September 24, 2010,
following those disputes, Ms. Alexis Ann Jacobs (“Jacobs”) caused a complaint to be filed in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of Ohio, Eastern Division, naming the Company, its wholly-owned subsidiary Acacia Chattanooga Vehicle Auction,
Inc. (“ACVA”) and its Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Steven Sample as defendants (the “Complaint”). Jacobs was principal seller of the
assets and business of the Chattanooga Auto Auction Limited Liability Company (e.g., the principal assets of ACVA) and also provided
a financing facility to the Company’s ACVA subsidiary. The Complaint alleged that events of default had occurred in regard to ACVA’s
obligations pursuant to a certain loan note and related agreements (the “Agreements”), claims the Company vigorously disputed. Failing
to gain a timely cognovit judgment as anticipated, Jacobs then on October 7, 2010, withdrew her complaint from the Federal Court and
again attempted to gain a cognovit judgment in the Court of Common Pleas in Franklin County, Columbus, Ohio.
On October 12, 2010, the Company filed a Notice of Removal to move the case from the Court of Common Pleas back to the United
States District Court and would thereafter answer the Complaint and file counterclaims against Jacobs, alleging, among other things, that
Jacobs’ declaration of default was wrongful and malicious, having no basis in fact. The Company’s case also made other allegations
against the parties.
On November 5, 2010, the Company and Mr. Sample filed a complaint in the same United States District Court naming Jacobs, Keith E.
Whann, CAA Liquidation, LLC (the renamed entity that sold the Chattanooga assets to the Company), Auction Venture Limited Liability
Company (the Lessor of the Chattanooga facility to ACVA), Tony Moorby, an ex-officer and director of the Company who had become
employed by Jacobs, and John David Bynum, also and ex-officer and director of the Company who had become employed by Jacobs. The
Company sought a declaratory judgment and injunctive relief against the other parties.
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ACACIA DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS, INC.
(FORMERLY ACACIA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS - (Continued)
The litigants would eventually enter into discussions resulting in a full Settlement Agreement and Release (the “Settlement Agreement”)
on February 28, 2012, effectively ending the ongoing litigation and disputes between the parties. All the parties to the Settlement
Agreement agreed to a mutual non-disparagement agreement and release from any liabilities or future litigations. The Settlement
Agreement and Release did not constitute an admission by the Company, its CEO, or any other party of any liability or violation of law.
As a result of this dispute and the actions surrounding it, the Company deemed its Chattanooga subsidiary’s operations to have been
effectively discontinued as of August 31, 2010, the last month for which the Company had access to or controlled the Chattanooga auction
operation.
In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 165, Subsequent Events ("SFAS 165"). SFAS 165 establishes general standards of accounting
for and disclosure of events after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued. The
adoption in the fourth quarter of 2010 did not have any material impact on the Company's financial statements. Accordingly, the
Company evaluated subsequent events through January 10, 2013, the date the financial statements were issued, and determined that there
were no other items to disclose.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
Amended report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
Acacia Diversified Holdings, Inc.
(Formerly Acacia Automotive, Inc.)
Date: January 10, 2013

By:

/s/ Steven L. Sample
Steven L. Sample
CEO, President, and
Chairman of the Board

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature

Title

Date

/s/ Steven L. Sample
Steven L. Sample

Director

January 10, 2013
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EXHIBIT 31.1
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certifications
I, Steven L. Sample, Chief Executive Officer of Acacia Diversified Holdings, Inc., fka/ Acacia Automotive, Inc., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Acacia Diversified Holdings, Inc. for the period ended 12-31-2010
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:
a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based upon
such evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on my most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
function):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: January 10, 2013
By: /s/ Steven L. Sample
Steven L. Sample
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32.1
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
regarding Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of section 1350, chapter 63 of title 18,
United States Code), the undersigned officer of a Texas corporation (the “Company”), does hereby certify that, to our knowledge:
1. The Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal period ended December 31, 2010, (the Form 10-K) fully complies
with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
2. Information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company for the periods presented herein.
Date: January 10, 2013
By: /s/ Steven L. Sample
Steven L. Sample
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
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